
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

FULL COUNCIL 
 

Monday, 19th July, 2021, 7.30 pm - Tottenham Green Leisure Centre 
1 Philip Lane  Tottenham N15 4JA 

 

To watch the Live  Stream click Here 

 
Members: Councillors Sheila Peacock, Dana Carlin, Gina Adamou, Charles Adje, 
Peray Ahmet, Kaushika Amin, Dawn Barnes, Dhiren Basu, Patrick Berryman, 
John Bevan, Barbara Blake, Mark Blake, Zena Brabazon, Gideon Bull, 
Vincent Carroll, Nick da Costa, Luke Cawley-Harrison, Seema Chandwani, 
Sakina Chenot, James Chiriyankandath, Pippa Connor, Eldridge Culverwell, 
Julie Davies, Mahir Demir, Paul Dennison, Isidoros Diakides, Josh Dixon, 
Erdal Dogan, Joseph Ejiofor, Scott Emery, Ruth Gordon, Makbule Gunes, 
Mike Hakata, Bob Hare, Kirsten Hearn, Justin Hinchcliffe, Emine Ibrahim, 
Sarah James, Adam Jogee (Mayor), Peter Mitchell, Liz Morris, Khaled Moyeed, 
Lucia das Neves, Felicia Opoku, Julia Ogiehor, Tammy Palmer, Reg Rice, Viv Ross, 
Alessandra Rossetti, Yvonne Say, Anne Stennett, Daniel Stone, Preston Tabois, 
Elin Weston, Noah Tucker, Sarah Williams and Matt White 
 
 
Quorum: 15 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Although we ask members of 
the public recording, filming or reporting on the meeting not to include the 
public seating areas, members of the public attending the meeting should be 
aware that we cannot guarantee that they will not be filmed or recorded by 
others attending the meeting.  Members of the public participating in the 
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests) 
should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on.  By 
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjIxZDdhMWMtMTI0OC00NDA5LWJmOWQtMmIzMTFhOTcxNmY1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2223a26c29-9165-4501-876b-873e129c6319%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d&btype=a&role=a


 

3. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972   
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

5. TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON  THE 27TH OF MAY 2021  (PAGES 
1 - 8) 
 

6. TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY 
BEFORE THE COUNCIL   
 

7. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  (PAGES 9 - 12) 
8.  

 i)Appointment of Honorary Recorder of Haringey 
 
ii)Change to Political composition and Appointments to Committees 2021/22 – 
To follow 
 

8. ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE LEADER - CSO 3.1 VII  (PAGES 13 - 16) 
 
1)Verbal  update 
 
2)Report of the Leader on Decisions taken under urgency 
 

9. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND HEAD 
OF LEGAL SERVICES   
 

10. TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  (PAGES 17 - 20) 
 



 

11. TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING BODIES  (PAGES 21 - 
106) 
 

 
a) Standards Committee 

 
12. HARINGEY DEBATE: MAKING CO-PRODUCTION WORK IN HARINGEY: 

EMPOWERING CITIZENS TO SHAPE THEIR COMMUNITY AND OUR 
FUTURE   
 

13. TO CONSIDER REQUESTS TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS AND/OR 
PETITIONS AND, IF APPROVED, TO RECEIVE THEM   
 

14. TO ANSWER QUESTIONS, IF ANY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL 
RULES OF PROCEDURE NOS. 9 & 10   
 
1. Cllr Cawley-Harrison to Cllr Ahmet 

Will the new administration be looking at cancelling the Civic Centre 
vanity project, saving taxpayers’ millions of pounds, and come back 
with a plan that is fit for a post-covid remote working world? 
 

2. Cllr Peacock to Cllr Chandwani  
Can the Cabinet member explain how the Council is supporting 
residents that are experiencing financial hardship as a result of Covid-
19? 

 
3. Cllr Connor to Cllr Hakata 

Last year, Liberal Democrats opposed the council's unfair plans to 
introduce charges for using public tennis courts. Thankfully, the Labour 
group later came round to our point of view and decided not to 
introduce charging. Why was that? 
 

4. Cllr Mitchell to Cllr Bevan 
Can the Cabinet member tell us what the Council is doing to help 
prevent people from becoming homeless following the pandemic? 

 
5. Cllr Barnes to Cllr Gordon 

In March you authored an excellent scrutiny report with 20 
recommendations for cabinet on the situation in Noel Park regarding 
the pod replacement and other repair works, which was voted through 
unanimously, including by the new Leader of the Council. Yet, at the 
recent Cabinet meeting, three of those recommendations were 
rejected. Why the change of heart? 
 

6. Cllr Culverwell to Cllr Hakata 
Can the Cabinet member outline how he plans to work with local 
people to tackle the climate emergency? 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
15a   To consider the following Motions in accordance with Council 

Rules of Procedure No. 13 
 

 
 
Motion A 

Cladding Scandal 
  

Proposer: Councillor Dawn Barnes 

Seconder: Councillor Julia Ogiehor 
 

Council notes that: 
 The tragedy of the 2017 Grenfell Tower fire, which led to the loss of 72 lives, 

was caused by Aluminium Composite Material (ACM) cladding; 
 The government banned the use of all combustible materials on the walls of 

new high rises in November 2018, extending the problem beyond ACM 
cladding to buildings clad with other flammable materials; 

 The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and the UK Council of 
Mortgage Lenders agreed to the industry External Wall System fire review 
and certification process resulting in what is known as an EWS1 form; 

 There is no legal requirement for owners to produce EWS1 forms or take 
remedial action, but many lenders are now refusing to provide mortgages 
without such a form; 

 Snagging is largely left as a responsibility of residents to take up with 
developers post-purchase, and even when covered by new build insurance 
schemes, leaseholders often suffer poor response and cycles of poor quality 
repair; 

 Remediation costs for cladding are sometimes spiralling to over £100,000 per 
flat, with many owners forcing these charges back onto leaseholders; 

 December 2020 saw the first case of a leaseholder being bankrupted by costs 
associated with the crisis; 

 Government plans for leaseholders to sue developers with no financial 
support will not help many due to: high legal costs, the issue of dangerous 
cladding being legal at the time buildings were built, and the possibility of 
developers having since become insolvent; 

 Waking watches, when a person patrols all floors and external areas of a 
building to give warning in the event of a fire, are being used in buildings at 
high risk of fire due to cladding, and are costing Londoners an average of 
over £20,000 per month; 

 Residents and leaseholders, through no fault of their own, are being left in 
potentially ruinous limbo, unable to mortgage or remortgage and therefore 
unable to buy and sell. 

 

Council believes that: 
 The combination of this cladding, EWS1 and snagging scandal is having a 

devastating impact on many residents; 
 The current industry EWS1 process and public funding of remediation works 

is not fit for purpose and needs rapid attention; 



 

 The funding given by central government towards remediation works is 
completely insufficient, and costs are still falling on the shoulders of individual 
leaseholders; 

 An independent public inquiry should be set up to look at the government’s 
response to concerns about fire and building safety; 

 The council has a responsibility and arguably a duty of care to residents who 
have innocently purchased properties granted planning permission by the 
council; 

 The council should not stand by and leave action to the government and 
should now step in and take action where legally allowed to. 

 

Council resolves to: 
 Sign up to the End Our Cladding Scandal campaign; 
 Immediately perform an audit and consultation with resident associations of 

all habitable buildings in Haringey (regardless of tenure) to establish the 
potential scope of the cladding, EWS1 and snagging issues, with a report 
back to Cabinet by the end of 2021; 

 Consider options on advice and support including establishing a Cladding and 
Snagging Hub by October 2021 to provide assistance to all Haringey 
residents and residents associations regardless of housing tenure which 
would support in lobbying developers, building owners and claiming 
Government funds to urgently rectify their buildings; 

 Investigate options such as redeployment and upskilling of staff, supporting 
and upskilling surveyors or other suitable professionals as appropriate, in 
order to perform more EWS1 assessments and accelerate remediation and 
certification; 

 Lobby all private building owners and Housing Associations in Haringey to act 
immediately in rectifying issues and achieving EWS1 certification – noting that 
some of these owners may not be the original developer and will therefore 
need the council’s assistance to engage and trace developers or find other 
routes to remedy, thus avoiding any cost to leaseholders; 

 Explore ways to delay approving planning applications where the applicant 
has outstanding snagging or EWS1 certification issues in Haringey and 
include a condition to be discharged on all future planning applications to 
provide an EWS1 form before first occupation; 

 Lobby and work with MPs, MHCLG and the Mayor of London to: 
o Devolve powers to Haringey Council in order to have jurisdiction over 

enforcing remediation of housing of all tenures and to obtain local 
control over the relevant compensation funds from the government, so 
the council can actively support affected residents in Haringey of all 
tenures; 

o Adopt the sensible recommendations of the Housing, Communities 
and Local Government Select Committee in their report on cladding 
remediation from April 2021; 

o Support the 10 steps set out by the End Our Cladding Scandal 
campaign. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

15b)To consider the following Motions in accordance with Council Rules 
of Procedure No. 13 

 
Motion B 
 
Proposer: Cllr John Bevan  
Seconder: Cllr Elin Weston 
 
Protecting local involvement in planning decisions 
 
This Council notes that central government's proposed planning reforms will 
allow developers to receive automatic planning permission in designated 
"growth zones", completely bypassing public objections from local residents.  
  
This Council notes that the Housing, Communities, and Local Government 
Select Committee has concluded that the government's plans will not produce 
a quicker, cheaper, and more democratic planning system.  
  
This Council believes that this is a "developers' charter" that side-lines local 
communities, depriving the public of the power to shape our future. 
 
This Council believes that placemaking, the collaborative process by which 
we can shape our public realm and reinvent public spaces as the heart of our 
communities, is essential to the future of our Borough. With community 
participation at its centre, placemaking cannot be successful without the 
active participation of our residents in decision making, including the right to 
object to planning applications that do not create or allow for quality public 
spaces that contribute to residents’ health, happiness, and wellbeing.  
  
This Council believes that there is a pressing need to build more good quality 
and affordable homes. More than 1.1m homes that received planning 
permission in England over the last decade are yet to be built, therefore the 
barrier towards meeting this need is not posed by the current planning 
system.  
  
This Council believes planning works best when developers and the local 
community work together to shape local areas and deliver necessary new 
homes. This Council calls on the government to protect the right of 
communities to object to any and all individual planning applications. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 
Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2929 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Friday, 09 July 2021 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING Full Council HELD ON Thursday, 27th 
May, 2021,7.30pm 
 

 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors: Adam Jogee (Mayor), Eldridge Culverwell, Charles Adje, 
Peray Ahmet, Kaushika Amin, Dawn Barnes, Dhiren Basu, 
Patrick Berryman, John Bevan, Barbara Blake, Zena Brabazon, 
Dana Carlin, Vincent Carroll, Nick da Costa, Luke Cawley-Harrison, 
Seema Chandwani, Sakina Chenot, Julie Davies, Paul Dennison, 
Isidoros Diakides, Josh Dixon, Erdal Dogan, Joseph Ejiofor, Ruth Gordon, 
Makbule Gunes, Mike Hakata, Lucia das Neves, Julia Ogiehor, 
Tammy Palmer, Sheila Peacock, Reg Rice, Yvonne Say, Anne Stennett, 
Elin Weston, Sarah Williams and Matt White 
 
 
ALSO ATTENDING:  
 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS  

 
The Mayor welcomed Members to the Annual Meeting of Full Council and notified 
attendees that it was being streamed live to the public on the Council’s website. 
 

2. TO ELECT THE MAYOR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 2021/22  
 
The Chief Executive invited nominations for the office of the Mayor of Haringey for the 
Municipal Year 2021- 22. 
 
Councillor Hakata nominated, and Councillor Barbara Blake seconded that Councillor 
Adam Jogee be elected Mayor for the forthcoming Municipal year. 
 
There being no other nominations, and further to adherence to Council Order 17.3, the 
Chief Executive duly announced Councillor Jogee as Mayor for the forthcoming 
Municipal year. 
 
The Mayor then addressed the Council, and reiterated the Council’s support to 
residents in the pandemic. He paid the Council’s respects to residents who had 
passed way and gave the Council’s condolences to  those who had lost loved ones in 
the pandemic . He thanked those who continued to closely support residents in these 
difficult times. He spoke of how loss had been a part of his experience as Mayor for 
the past 7 months and hoped the coming months, for residents, to experience hope 
and opportunity.  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



 

 

The Mayor continued to outline his experiences, events and engagements taken 
forward in the last 7 months as first citizen. He gave thanks for his election and 
outlined his objectives for his year of office. 
 
The Mayor’s Consorts would continue to be Alison Lawther and Harun Jogee and they 
would be keep the Badge of Office provided in the 2021 – 22 Annual meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 

1. That Councillor Adam Jogee be elected Mayor for the Municipal Year 2021/22. 
2. To note that the Mayor made and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of 

Office. 
 

3. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
The Chief Executive announced that the following councillors had provided apologies 
for a variety of reasons, including covid restrictions still being in place.  
Cllr Adamou 
Cllr Chiriyankandath 
Cllr Opoku 
Cllr Rossetti 
Cllr Hare  
Cllr Ross 
Cllr Emery 
Cllr James 
Cllr Tucker 
Cllr Morris 
Cllr Hinchliffe 
Cllr Tabois 
Cllr Demir 
Cllr Bull 
Cllr Ibrahim 
Cllr Mark Blake 
Cllr Connor 
Cllr Mitchell 
Cllr Moyeed 
Cllr Stone 
Cllr Hearn 
 
There were apologies for lateness – Cllr Peacock, Cllr Stennett and Cllr Adje. 
 

4. TO ASK THE MAYOR TO CONSIDER THE ADMISSION OF ANY LATE ITEMS OF 
BUSINESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100B OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
The Chief Executive asked the Mayor to agree the admission of the following late 
items of business that could not be available earlier and needed to be dealt with at the 
meeting: 
  
Item 10 – Appointments made by the Political Groups. 
Item 11 - Appointments of Committees for the Municipal Year 2021/22; and 

Page 2



 

 

Item 12 - Appointments to outside bodies 2021/22:  
Item 14 - Attendance at meetings 2020 - 21 
 
The first three reports outlined, were not available at the time of dispatch as they 
needed to include recent changes following party group meetings. The fourth report 
was not available to allow consultation and finalisation of the report. 
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

6. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY 
MAYOR  
 
The Chief Executive reported that the Mayor had signified in writing the appointment 
of Councillor Eldridge Culverwell as Deputy Mayor for the Municipal Year 2021/22. 
Councillor Culverwell would be given his Badge of Office outside of the meeting. 
 
The Chief Executive announced that the Deputy Mayor’s Consorts would be Debbie 
Brown and Maya Culverwell. 
 

7. TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 
THE COUNCIL HELD ON 18TH OF MARCH 2021  
 
RESOLVED 
 
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on the 18 March 2021 as a true record. 
 

8. TO RECEIVE SUCH COMMUNICATIONS AS THE MAYOR MAY LAY BEFORE 
THE COUNCIL  
 
The Mayor announced his charities and chosen causes for the coming year would 
continue to be: 
 
• Pram Depot 
• Accumulate  
• The Friends of Hornsey Church Tower  
 
Since election the Mayor had attended at least one engagement per ward and would 
aim to continue to do this in the coming year. 
 
The Mayor welcomed the new Monitoring Officer, Fiona Alderman to the Council and 
looked forward to working with her. 
 
The Mayor further reported on his goodbye to George Cooper who had served for 
many years as the Head of Elections and who was now leaving the council to take 
forward new challenges. The Mayor spoke for all councillors in expressing their thanks 
and appreciation for George’s service and contribution to the borough. 
 

Page 3



 

 

The Mayor spoke of Nicky Gavron, a former Haringey Councillor, GLA Member and 
former London Deputy Mayor who was stepping down as a GLA member. He gave 
thanks to her for 40 years of service to the borough and City of London. 
 
The Mayor gave thanks to Councillors who had volunteered in the vaccination drive 
and contributed to the Mayor’s cause to support volunteers and staff with 
refreshments. 
  
The Mayor advised that he would be opening up his parlour to local community groups 
to meet with him and spoke of the parlour being available for their use. 
 

9. TO ELECT THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE 2021/22 MUNICIPAL YEAR 
AND UNTIL THE DAY OF THE ANNUAL MEETING FOLLOWING THE LOCAL 
ELECTIONS IN MAY 2022.  
 
Councillor Weston proposed that Councillor Peray Ahmet be elected Leader of the 
Council for the 2021/22 Municipal Year and until the day of the Annual Meeting 
following the local elections in May 2022, which was seconded by Councillor 
Brabazon. 
 
There being no other nominations received, the Mayor called a vote on the proposal. 
With 27 Members voting in favour, and 8 abstaining, it was agreed that Councillor 
Peray Ahmet be elected Leader. 
 
The Leader of the Council then gave an address to the Council, setting out her 
aspirations for her term of office. This was responded to by Councillor Cawley- 
Harrison, after which Councillor Ahmet had opportunity to address the points made by 
Councillor Cawley- Harrison. 
 

10. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, NOTING THE 
APPOINTMENTS MADE BY POLITICAL GROUPS, AND TO TAKE SUCH ACTION 
AS MAY BE APPROPRIATE  
 
The Mayor agreed to the admittance of this item as a late report, given that it set out 
decisions that had been made recently at party meetings. 
 
Councillor Rice, as Chief Whip, introduced the paper that outlined appointments made 
by Political Groups in their recent annual meetings. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the constitution of the political groups be noted: 
 
 
The Labour Group 
 
Leader:    Councillor Ahmet 
Deputy Leader:    Councillor Hakata 
Chief Whip:    Councillor Rice 
Chair:     Councillor Williams 
Vice Chair:    Councillor Weston 

Page 4



 

 

Secretary:    Councillor Mitchell 
Assistant Whips:   Councillors, Gunes, Say, Stennett 
Group Treasurer    Councillor Gordon 
Non-Executive members  Councillors, Brabazon, Dogan 
 
Councillors: 
 Adamou 
Adje 
Amin 
Basu 
Berryman 
Bevan 
B Blake 
M Blake 
Bull 
Carlin 
Carroll 
Chandwani 
Chiriyankandath 
Culverwell 
das Neves 
Davies 
Demir 
Diakides 
Ejiofor 
Hearn 
Ibrahim 
James 
Jogee 
Moyeed 
Opoku 
Peacock 
Stone 
Tabois 
Tucker 
White  
 
The Liberal Democrat Group 
 
Leader:    Councillor Cawley- Harrison 
Deputy Leader:   Councillor Dixon 
Chief Whip:    Councillor Ogiehor 
Deputy Whip:   Councillor Emery 
Group Chair:    Councillor da Costa 
Deputy Group Chair:  Councillor Ross 
 
Councillors: 
  
Barnes  
Chenot 

Page 5



 

 

Connor 
Dennison 
Hare 
Hinchcliffe 
 Morris 
Palmer 
Rossetti 
  
 
  
Opposition Spokespeople: 
Cllr Luke Cawley-Harrison – Leader  
Cllr Josh Dixon - Youth, Human Rights & Civil Society 
Cllr Paul Dennison - Spokesperson for Finance, Business & Local Investment 
Cllr Dawn Barnes - Spokesperson for Housing, Regeneration and Estate Renewal 
Cllr Julia Ogiehor - Spokesperson for Crime, Communities & Equalities 
Cllr Alessandra Rossetti - Spokesperson for Arts, Leisure & Culture 
Cllr Justin Hinchcliffe - Spokesperson for Customer & Civic Services 
Cllr Tammy Palmer - Spokesperson for Children & Families 
Cllr Sakina Chenot - Spokesperson for Education 
Cllr Scott Emery - Spokesperson for Environment 
Cllr Nick da Costa - Spokesperson for Mental Health & Wellbeing 
Cllr Viv Ross - Spokesperson for Borough Heritage and Regulations 
Cllr Bob Hare – Spokesperson for Planning, Parks & Green spaces 
Cllr Pippa Connor - Spokesperson for Health, Social Care & Adults 
Cllr Liz Morris - Transport & Neighbourhoods 
 

11. TO AGREE THE APPOINTMENTS PROCEDURE AND TO APPOINT COMMITTEES 
AND OTHER BODIES FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2021/22, INCLUDING THE 
SELECTION OF THE CHAIRS AND VICE CHAIRS  
 
The Mayor agreed to the admittance of this item as a late report, given that it set out 
decisions that had been made recently at party meetings. 
 
The Chief Whip moved recommendation 1, as detailed in the circulated report. 
 
The Chief Whip moved recommendation 2, as detailed in the circulated report,  
 
Councillor Dixon moved an amendment to Recommendation 3, seconded by 
Councillor Ogiehor, as follows: - 
 
 “Agree the membership of Committees and the appointment of Chairs as detailed at 
Appendix 1 subject to Cllr Connor being made the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.” 
 
 
Councillor Rice responded to the amendment. 
 
A vote was taken on the amendment to Recommendation 3, as follows: 
 

Page 6



 

 

8 in FAVOUR,  
 
28 AGAINST 
 
NO abstentions 
 
The amendment was lost. On a vote on the original motion, this was agreed. 
 
The Chief Whip moved recommendation 4, as detailed in the circulated report.  
 
RESOLVED 
 

1.  To Appoint to the Committees on the "slate" basis. 
 

2. To agree the allocation of seats on Committees and appointments in 
accordance with paragraphs 4.1 to 4.5. 
 

3. To agree the membership of Committees and the appointment of Chairs as 
detailed at Appendix 1 giving effect to the wishes of the political groups. 

 

4. To note the proposed membership of the Cabinet as detailed at Appendix 2 
appointed by the Leader in accordance with paragraph 7.05 ii. 

 
12. TO MAKE APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES  

 
The Mayor agreed to the admittance of this item as tabled, given that it set out 
decisions that had been made recently at party meetings. 
 
The Chief Whip moved the report, as tabled. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To note the appointments to the Partnership and Association bodies which 
mainly exercise ‘executive’ functions set out at Appendix 1 and in accordance 
with article 10.8b(i) 

 
2. To approve the appointments to the remainder of outside bodies set out at 

Appendix 1. 
 

13. TO NOTE THE END OF MUNICIPAL YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR 2020/21  
 
The Chief Whip moved the report as circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the End of Municipal Year Financial statement for 2020/21 be noted. 
 

Page 7



 

 

14. TO RECEIVE A STATEMENT OF COUNCILLORS' ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 
OF THE COUNCIL, COMMITTEES, AND SUBCOMMITTEES IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES  
 
The Mayor agreed the admittance of this report as late business. 
The Chief Whip moved the report as circulated. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 That the statement of attendance, as attached, be noted. 
 

15. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER AND HEAD OF 
LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE SERVICES  
 
The Monitoring Officer had no matters to report. 
 
 

 
CHAIR:  
 
Signed by Chair ……………………………….. 
 
Date ………………………………… 
 
 

 

Page 8



 

Page 1 of 3  

 
Report for:   Full Council 19 July 2021 
 
 
 
Title: Appointment of Honorary Recorder of Haringey 
 
Report  
authorised by :  Fiona Alderman, Head of Legal and Governance 
 
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services & Scrutiny Manager 
 Ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk, 020 8489 2929 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non-Key Decision: N/A 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration. 
 
1.1 Having a strong relationship between the judiciary and local partners, including 

the local authority is recognised as an effective way of supporting community 
safety. It is for this reason that the Lord Chief Justice recommends that effective 
relationships between the judiciary and civic institutions are a good way of 
establishing a means of communications to support, safer and stronger local 
communities. One means of recognising that such a relationship exists is through 
the appointment of an Honorary Recorder for the Borough. This report 
recommends that such an appointment is made. 
 

1.2 Wood Green Crown Court is a prominent part of the Borough and deals with 
many high-profile criminal cases, delivering justice in London and beyond as well 
as many more local cases. His Honour Judge Lucas has been a Resident Judge 
at Wood Green Crown Court since 2014 and, in addition to his daily role, has 
made significant steps to develop closer links with the borough, including local 
people, businesses, and schools to help children and young people connect to 
the justice system in a positive way. 

 

1.3 The appointee to the role of Honorary Recorder must be a serving circuit judge or 
recorder and it is proposed that Judge Noel Lucas be appointed to the position. 

 
1.4 The Council was pleased to receive the suggestion from the Lead Presiding 

Judge of the South Eastern Circuit , Mr Justice Edis, to make this appointment, 
following the tireless efforts and continuous priority Judge Lucas has given to 
opening up the Crown Court to the community. 

 

1.5 In accordance with The Lord Chief Justice’s guidelines, the Chief Executive 
further consulted the Senior Presiding Judge for England and Wales, The Right 
Honourable Lady Justice Thirlwall, DBE, who advised that she happily endorsed 
the appointment of Judge Lucas as Honorary Recorder for Haringey, in 
recognition of his continuing positive connections to the local community.  

Page 9 Agenda Item 7

mailto:Ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 3  

 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 N/A 
 
3. Recommendations  
 
3.1 To agree, that pursuant to Section 54 of the Courts Act 1971, His Honour, Judge 

Noel Lucas, be appointed to the office of Honorary Recorder of Haringey during 
his tenure as Resident circuit judge. 

 
4. Reasons for decision  
 
4.1 As set out in paragraph 1.1 to establish links between the judiciary and civil life 

and support safer and stronger communities. 
 
5. Alternative options considered. 

 
None – The political groups were consulted prior to the meeting and agree with 
this proposed recommendation. 

 
6. Background information 
 
6.1 At each Crown Court centre a particular judge is appointed “Resident Judge” and 

leads the team of judges who sit there and provides the essential link between the 
judiciary and the administration. 

 
6.2 Judge Lucas was involved in the prosecution of a high-profile child sexual 

exploitation case before he came to Wood Green Crown Court as its most senior 
judge. He has continued take forward further high-profile prosecutions, working 
collaboratively with the borough to ensure that the Crown Court was able to 
continue to operate with appropriate social distancing in place over the last 16 
months and justice delivered in these difficult times. 

. 
6.3 Since the implementation of the Courts Act 1971 and the establishment of the 

Crown Court for England and Wales, Councils with Crown Courts have had the 
power to appoint resident judges as Honorary Recorder of their borough.  

 
6.4 Historically, the Recorder of a town or city was a legal representative charged with 

the duties of dispensing justice at the Court. Currently, the role of Honorary 
Recorder is a purely civic and ceremonial one which carries no formal duties or 
powers. It is intended to further the link between a Council and the criminal courts, 
through involving the senior sitting judge in civic affairs and ceremonial events. In 
practice, this would see the Honorary Recorder attend civic events such as the 
Annual Council meeting and Remembrance Services.  

 
6.5 According to the Lord Chief Justice’s Guidelines for the Appointment of Honorary 

Recorders, it has been the practice of most large city Councils to appoint the 
Resident Judge to be Honorary Recorder of the city during their tenure of office.  

 

Page 10



 

Page 3 of 3  

6.6 As head of the Judiciary, following the Constitutional Reform Act 2005, the Lord 
Chief Justice was keen to encourage those city and borough councils which have 
not made such appointments to consider doing so.  

 
6.7 The guidelines also state that the involvement of the boroughs’ Senior Resident 

Judge in civic affairs and events have been found to be valuable and are generally 
enjoyed and appreciated on both sides.  

 
6.8 In accordance with the 1971 Act such an appointment is made to an individual so in 

the case of appointing Judge Lucas, it would last for the period he is in office, 
ending on 5th December 2022. 

 
7. Statutory Officers comments  

 
Finance  
 

7.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from the report as there are no 
defined tasks undertaken by the Honorary Recorder on behalf of the Council. Any 
costs associated with the Honorary Recorder would need to be met from existing 
budgetary provisions. 

 
Legal 
 

7.2 These are set out within the report. Section 54 of the Courts Act 1971 provides 
that “the Council of a borough shall have power to appoint a person to be 
honorary recorder of the borough. Any person appointed must be a circuit judge 
or recorder. 

  
8. Use of Appendices 

 None 
 

9. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
The Lord Chief Justice’s guidelines for the appointment of Honorary Recorders 

 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report for:  Full Council – 19 July 2021 
 
Title: Leader’s Report on Special Urgency Decisions 

 
Authorised by:  Fiona Alderman Head of Legal and  Governance & Monitoring 

Officer 
 
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 

0208 489 2929 ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non Key Decision 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 This report sets out the decisions taken under the Council’s Urgency Procedure 

which are required to be reported to Council on an annual basis. 
 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction  

N/A 
 

3. Recommendations  
 

3.1 Council is asked to:  
 
Note the decisions taken under the Council’s Special Urgency Procedure. 

 
4.  Background information  
 
4.1 Part 4 Section D, Paragraph 19.3 of the Council Constitution advises that the 

Leader submit a report to the Council at least annually on the Cabinet decisions 
taken in the circumstances set out in rule 17(special urgency) during the period 
since the last report was submitted to Council.  The report will include the number 
of decisions so taken and a summary of the matters in respect of which those 
decisions were taken. 

 

Date Report title Report Recommendations 
27 July 2020 ROUGH SLEEPING 

DISCRETION POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agreed to the adoption of the Rough Sleeping Discretion Policy attached at 
Appendix one of the report.  

  
Delegated authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and Planning, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Estate Renewal, to 
amend this policy to give effect to changes in legislation or statutory guidance, 
or directives or requests of a similar character issued by Government.  

  
Agreed that this policy would terminate on 30 September 2020, unless 
terminated earlier or extended beyond this date by Cabinet/Cabinet Member 
decision.  

 
 

 
 

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



 

10 August 2020 COVID-19 Local 
Outbreak 
Management Plan for 
Haringey 

i.To approve the COVID-19 Local Outbreak Management Plan at appendix 1; 

ii. agree to delegate authority to the Director of Public Health in consultation 
with the Cabinet portfolio holder to make any amendments to the plan 
required due to the changing nature of the Pandemic and the level of local 
response needed; and 

iii. note allocation of Haringey’s COVID-19 Test and Trace support grant of 
£1.862m which is to be used to prevent, mitigate and management of 
outbreaks of COVID-19 in Haringey and support the delivery of the Local 
Outbreak Management Plan. 

 
27 August 2020 Leisure Provision by 

Fusion and support 
in respect to the 
restart of the Fusion 
Business 

 
RESOLVED that the Council would not agree to Fusion’s request to allow 
NatWest to take a security against the New River Lease. 

4 September 
2020 

Inter authority Pan 
London temporary 
Mortuary Provision 

That  the Council enter into a legal inter-authority pan London agreement as 
detailed in exempt Appendix 2 for temporary mortuary (storage) facilities and 
services between all London Boroughs until March 2021, and to delegate 
authority to the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods to approve the 
final agreement; and 
 
ii) for Westminster City Council to be the lead authority for contractual 
services required; and 
 
iii) for London Borough of Camden to hold and administer the finances into a 
Sink Fund; and  
 
iv) Payments be made as required to the Sink Fund for Haringey’s 
contribution of cost, with the first payment of £485,964 to be made by 4th 
September 2020. 

29 September 
2021 

Amendment and 
extension of the 
Rough Sleeper 
Discretion Policy to 31 
March 2021 

That the Rough Sleeper Discretion Policy attached at Appendix 1 as amended 
in red be adopted; 
That authority be delegated to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and 
Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Estate 
Renewal, to amend this policy to give effect to changes in legislation or 
statutory guidance, or directives or requests of a similar character issued by 
Government; and 
That the period of application of this policy be extended to 31 March 2021, 
unless terminated earlier or extended beyond this date by Cabinet / Cabinet 
Member decision.   

 5 October 2020 Buy Back of Fusion's 
New River Lease and 
Provision of a Short 
Term Lease 

 To agree the acquisition of the New River Lease from Fusion for a sum equal 
to the amount of the loan outstanding under the Loan Agreement dated 11 
July 2014; 

ii. agree to fund the acquisition through utilising the Responsiveness Fund 
capital budget and the approved capital programme contingency budget; 

iii. agree to the Council leasing back part of the site (not subject to the 
Tenancies) to Fusion Lifestyle for a period of up to 12 months; and 

iv. to note the Tenancies that will be directly managed by the Council on the 
site once the Head Lease is acquired (as set out in appendix C). 

 
19 October 2020 Approval of 

Discretionary Payment 
Policy for those Self-
Isolating during the 
Covid-19 pandemic 

1To adopt the Self-Isolation Payment Discretionary Policy attached at 
Appendix 1.  
 
2.To delegate authority to the Assistant Director Commissioning, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transformation and Public Realm 
Investment, to amend this policy to give effect to changes in legislation,  
statutory or non statutory guidance, or directives or instructions  of a similar 
character issued by Government. 
 
3.To agree that this policy is subject to the availability of government funding 
and will terminate on 31st January 2021 unless terminated earlier or extended 
beyond this date by Cabinet / Cabinet Member decision. 

17 December 
2020 

COVID-19 Local 
Restrictions Grant 
(Open) and Additional 

1.    To approve the local eligibility and grant levels as described in the report 
for the Local Restrictions Grant Scheme (Open) and the Additional 
Restrictions Grant Scheme (as set out in paragraphs 5.41-5.69). 

Page 14



Restrictions Grant 
Schemes 

 
2.    To delegate authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and 
Planning in consultation with the Director of Finance and the Cabinet Member 
for Local Investment and Economic Growth decisions to agree the criteria for 
the allocation of Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme funding as described in 
this report (as set out in paragraphs 5.62-5.63). 
 
3.    To delegate authority to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and 
Planning in consultation with the Director of Finance and the Cabinet Member 
for Local Investment and Economic Growth decisions to agree the criteria for 
the application of residual Local Restrictions Grant Scheme (Open) as 
described in this report (as set out in paragraph 5.50). 

21 December 
2020 

COVID Winter Grant 
Scheme in Haringey 

1.    To approve the COVID Winter Grant Scheme Policy which sets out the 
Council’s arrangement for administering the Scheme and is attached at 
Appendix 1.  
 
2.    To delegate authority to the Assistant Director Commissioning, in 
consultation with the Director of Children Services and the Cabinet Member 
for Children, Education and Families , to amend this policy to give effect to 
changes in legislation,  statutory or non- statutory guidance, or directives or 
instructions  of a similar character issued by Government. 
 
3.    To agree that this policy is subject to the availability of government 
funding and will terminate on 31st March 2021 unless terminated earlier or 
extended beyond this date by Cabinet / Cabinet Member decision.   
 
 

16 Feb 2021 Salix Public Sector 
Decarbonisation 
Scheme Funding for 
Schools 

1.    To agree to accept the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme Grant 
funding of £2.452 million. 
2.    To delegate authority to the Director of Finance to sign the Grant Offer 
letter to accept the grant funding. 
 
3.    To delegate authority to the Director of Finance to agree the final terms of 
the grant funding agreement which includes the Memorandum of 
Understanding, the draft of which is attached as Appendix 1 to the report. 

3 March 2021 Hardship Fund 
Allocation 

i.   Approve the funding allocation as set out in paragraph 5.4 and Appendix 1; 
 
ii.  Delegate authority to the Director for Customers, Transformation and 
Resources, in consultation with the Leader of the Council to re-distribute 
funding between the headings set out in appendix 1 and the schedule in 
Appendix 2 according to emerging need; and 
 
iii. Agree that this policy is subject to the availability of government funding 
and will terminate on 31st March 2021 unless terminated earlier or extended 
beyond this date by Cabinet / Cabinet Member decision. 
 
 

12 March 2021 COVID Winter Grant 
Scheme in Haringey 

Approved the additional funding allocation from the Government;  
approved the COVID Additional Winter Grant Scheme Policy which sets out 
the Council’s arrangement for administering the additional funding and is 
attached at Appendix 1;  
 
Agreed to delegate authority to the Assistant Director Commissioning, in 
consultation with the Director of Children Services and the Cabinet Member 
for Children, Education and Families, to amend this policy to give effect to 
changes in legislation, statutory or non-statutory guidance, or directives or 
instructions of a similar character issued by Government;  
 
Agreed that this policy was subject to the availability of government funding 
and would terminate on 16th April 2021, unless terminated earlier or extended 
beyond this date by Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision. 

 
19 March 2021 

Grant funding to 
develop supported 
housing for people at 
risk of rough sleeping 

1.Approve receipt from the GLA of £2,035,000 in capital funding to the Council 
through the Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme. 
 
2.Approve that the grant sum is added to the HRA capital programme. 
 
 
3. Delegate the detail of negotiating and entering into contract with the GLA in 
relation to this grant to the Director of Housing, Regeneration and Planning 
after consultation with the Director of Finance and the Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Estate Renewal. 

 
24 March 2021 
 
 

EXTENSION OF 
COVID-19 
EMERGENCY 
ACCOMMODATION 

To approve the extension of the contract for emergency Covid-19 
accommodation for vulnerable rough sleepers with London Hotel Group Ltd 
T/A Ibis Styles Hotel. The cost of the extension period from April to September 
2021 being £525,404. 

Page 15



PROVISION FOR 
SINGLE ADULTS AT 
RISK OF ROUGH 
SLEEPING 

 
25 May 2021 
 
 
 

Covid Local Support 
Grant: Previously the 
COVID Winter Grant 
Scheme in Haringey 

i. Approves the additional funding allocation from the Government 
ii. Approves  the  Covid Local Support Grant/ Winter Grant 3: April 2021 
Scheme Policy which sets out the Council’s arrangement for administering the 
additional funding and is attached at Appendix 1 
iii. Delegates authority to the Assistant Director Commissioning, in 
consultation with the Director of Children Services and the Cabinet Member 
for Children, Education and Families, to amend this policy to give effect to 
changes in legislation, statutory or non-statutory guidance, or directives or 
instructions of a similar character issued by Government 
iv. Agrees that this policy is subject to the availability of government funding 
and will terminate on 17th June 2021 unless terminated earlier or extended 
beyond this date by Cabinet or Cabinet Member  decision. 

 
5. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
Finance and Procurement 

 
5.1 There are no financial implications as this is a  noting report. 
 

Assistant Director Corporate Governance & Monitoring Officer  
 

5.2 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England Regulations 2012) requires local authorities to consider an 
annual report detailing each executive decision where the making of the decision 
was agreed as special urgency. 

 
6. Use of Appendices 
 

None 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 
7.1 Background documents: 
 

Link to urgent decisions is as follows: 
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=773&Year=0 

 
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=435&MId=95
21&Ver=4 

 
7.2 The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood 

Green, London N22 8HQ. 
 
7.3 To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Ayshe Simsek 

on 0208 489 2929. 

 

Page 16

https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=773&Year=0
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=435&MId=9521&Ver=4
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=435&MId=9521&Ver=4


Page 1 of 3  

  
 

Report for:  Full Council – 19 July 2021 
 

Title: Amendment to an appointment to  an outside body 2021/22 
 
Authorised by :  Fiona Alderman– Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer 
 
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 

0208 489 2920 ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non Key Decisions 

 
 

1.Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 To advise the Council of a proposed change to a Council representative on an outside 

body and seek approval in accordance with Part 2 of the Constitution, paragraph 
4.02(p). 

1.2 The Chief Whip of the Labour group has advised that Cllr Hakata is stepping down from 
the Selby Centre Trust and that Cllr Ibrahim is nominated to replace him. 

 
2.Cabinet Member Introduction 
  
2.1 N/A 
 
3.Recommendations  

 
3.1 To agree that Cllr Ibrahim replace Cllr Hakata as the Council’s nominated 

representative on on the Selby Trust – Board of Trustees in accordance with Part 2 of 
the Constitution, paragraph 4.02(p). 
 

4.Background information  
 
4.1 Part 2 of the Constitution, paragraph 4.02 (p) indicates that full Council will appoint 

representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is a Cabinet function or has 
been delegated by the Council.  

 
4.2 Section 10.08 of Part 2 of the Constitution advises that the Council has nomination 

rights to a large number of different external bodies, referred to as ‘organisations’. The 
practice of making nominations to organisations is a benefit to the Council and the links 
created contribute to the social well-being of the borough.  

 
4.3 These organisations can be categorised as follows: 

 
A.  Association bodies, such as the Local Government Association or Association of 

London Government joint committees and panels.  
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 10



Page 2 of 3  

B. Community or voluntary bodies which cover a very wide spectrum of organisations 
serving the community , or community groups, in various ways. 
 

C. Partnership bodies which will usually involve the Council working with other 
agencies on local issues or projects. 
 

D. Statutory bodies, where the Borough of Haringey needs to be represented by law. 
 

E. Trusts and Foundations which generally have more specific and prescribed 
objectives. 

 
4.4 As set out in section 10.08(b) the nominations to all outside bodies are made and 

confirmed at each Annual General Meeting. Where there is an association or 
partnership body exercising executive functions, then nominations of the Cabinet 
Member wil be made by the Leader of the Council, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s 
agreement and recorded in the list approved at the AGM.  

 
4.5 The Constitution continues to advise that future nominations to voluntary or community 

bodies will generally be in a non – voting, “observer” capacity only, in order to avoid the 
greater potential for conflicts of interest. Nominated members will not participate in 
management or decision – making within the organisation. Their role will be to assist in 
the exchange of information and views between the organisation and the council . 

 
4.6 Nominations to other organisations will generally be in a full voting capacity, that is the 

member should participate fully in management and decision making within the 
organisation. 

 
 
 
5.Use of Appendices 

 
None 
6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

 
6.1 Background documents: 

 Appointments to outside bodies 2021/22 
 
6.2 The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, 

London N22 8HQ. 
 

6.3 To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Ayshe Simsek on 0208 
489 2920. 

 
 
 

Page 18



 

Page 3 of 3  

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE 01/2021-22  
       
FULL COUNCIL 19 July 2021 
 
Chair: Councillor Opoku 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 This report from the Standards Committee, arises from  consideration of the 

attached reports at Annex 1  and Annex 2 considered at the  meeting on 29 
June 2021  and asks Full Council to consider the following: 
 

 Proposed amendments to the Constitution in relation to the recruitment of 
statutory officers.  

 

 Proposed amendments to the Constitution in relation to executive 
functions.  

 
1.2 The full recommendations for each item are included in this Council  report and 

the attached appendices.  
 

 
2. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION (RECRUITMENT OF 

STATUTORY OFFICERS) 
 

2.1 Standards Committee considered the report at  Annex 1 which was proposed 
to take forward the recommendations of the Staffing and Remuneration 
Committee to amend the Constitution to ensure that members remained 
responsible for taking steps for the appointment of the Monitoring Officer and 
to ensure the Monitoring Officer was correctly referred to within the 
Constitution. 
 

2.2 We heard that, under Section K of the constitution, all Directors and Assistant 
Directors were appointed by the Staffing and Remuneration Committee.  

 
2.3 We also heard that the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance role, which 

included the statutory Monitoring Officer function, had recently been deleted 
and a Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) role had been 
introduced. It was explained that this change had inadvertently resulted in the 
appointment of the Monitoring Officer falling outside of the Staffing and 
Remuneration Committee remit.  

 
2.4 It was noted that all other statutory officers were included in the remit of the 

Staffing and Remuneration Committee, and it was considered that the 
appointment of the Monitoring Officer should be included. 
 

2.5 We noted that the Staffing and Remuneration Committee had considered the 
proposal at its meeting on 16 March 2021 and supported the proposed 
amendments to the Constitution. 

Page 21 Agenda Item 11



 
2.6 We considered the proposals and agreed to the proposed amendments.  

 
2.7 We also agreed to recommend that the reference to European elections in 

Article 3.02 of the Constitution should be removed as the United Kingdom 
would no longer have European elections following its departure from the 
European Union. 

 
3. WE RECOMMEND 

 
That Full Council is asked: 

 
3.1 To approve the amendments to the Constitution set out in Appendices 1 to 5. 

 
3.2 To approve the amendments to Article 3.02 of the Constitution to remove the 

reference to European elections set out in Appendix 1. 
 

4. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION (EXECUTIVE 
FUNCTIONS) 

 
4.1 Standards Committee considered the report at Annex 2. It was proposed that 

authority to take certain small and non–controversial decisions on traffic orders 
be included in the Officer Scheme of Delegation for Environment and 
Neighbourhoods with some safeguards in place,  

 
4.2 It was noted that, following compilation of recent Highways and Parking reports 

to Cabinet, delegation had been sought for small non-controversial traffic 
orders to be delegated to officers. However, this could not be taken forward 
and added to these reports as a recommendation as current constitutional 
provision would require approval by Cabinet. It was considered that this 
inhibited the progress and delivery of schemes.  

 
4.3 It was explained that small traffic management schemes which were costed 

below £100k would be taken by officer delegated decision in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member with the relevant portfolio. These would be deemed officer 
delegated decisions that would be published on the Council’s website and 
available for public view.  

 
4.4 In relation to medium to large traffic management schemes that did not 

generate wider interest, did not affect multiple wards, but that raised more than 
10 objections would be taken forward as non-key decisions by the Cabinet 
Member with responsibility for the relevant portfolio. The report and decision 
notice would be published five clear working days before the decision was 
taken and the Cabinet Member would make the decision through an individual 
signing. The decision would be published on the website and there would be 
no call-in as it was not a key decision. 

 
4.5 In relation to large traffic management schemes that would have an impact on 

multiple wards and would have a significant public interest would be taken 

Page 22



forward by Cabinet. This would allow consideration of deputations and the 
decisions would be subject to call-in. 

 
4.6 It was also proposed to update some inaccurate terminology which referred to 

‘Traffic Regulation Orders’. 
 

4.7 The Chair noted that the proposals had been considered by the appropriate 
Cabinet Members and that no objections had been raised.  

 
4.8 We considered the proposals and agreed to the proposed amendments. 
 
 
5. WE RECOMMEND 

 
That Full Council is asked: 

 
5.1 To approve the amendments to the Constitution set out in Appendix 6. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2  

Report for:  Standards Committee – 29 June 2021 
 
Title: Proposed Amendments to the Constitution (Recruitment of 

Statutory Officers) 
Report  
authorised by: Fiona Alderman – Head of Legal and Governance 
 
Lead Officer: Ayshe Simsek, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager, 

ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk, 020 8489 2929. 
 
Ward(s) affected: Not appliable 
 
Report for Key/  
Non-Key Decision: Non-Key Decision  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The Council constitution governs the organisation of Council decision making. It 

is kept under review and, when necessary, amendments are proposed to 
Standards Committee for consideration and recommendation on to Full Council, 
in accordance with Article 14.03 (Changes to the Constitution). 

 
1.2 This report takes forward recommendations of the Staffing and Remuneration 

Committee to amend the Constitution to ensure that members remain 
responsible for taking steps for the appointment of the Monitoring Officer and to 
ensure the Monitoring Officer is correctly referred to within the Constitution. The 
reasons for this are set out in Appendix 1 which is the report considered by the 
Staffing and Remuneration Committee on the 16th of March. 
 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 

Not applicable. 
 
 
3. Recommendations  

 
The Standards Committee is asked: 
 

3.1 To approve the additions to the Constitution set out at appendix 2 to 5. 
 
3.2 To recommend that these changes to the Constitution are adopted by Full 

Council at its meeting on 19th of July 2021. 

 
 
4. Reasons for decision  

 
4.1 To respond to Staffing and Remuneration Committee comments and ensure 

that the Council constitution includes all the necessary information. 
 

Page 25

mailto:ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 2  

4.2 To ensure that the Constitution is updated and allows decision making to be 
taken forward as efficiently and effectively as possible . 
 

 
5. Alternative options considered. 

 
To not agree the changes to the Council constitution and/ or defer 
consideration. This option is not recommended as it would be contrary to the 
request made by Members and Officers.  

  
 
6. Background information 
 
6.1 The attached report to Staffing and Remuneration Committee sets out the 

background for the required changes set out at appendices 2 to 5. These were 
considered by Staffing and Remuneration Committee on the 16th of March and 
agreed for recommendation to full Council. Changes to the Constitution would 
need to be recommended by the Standards Committee, in line with Article 
14.03 and the changes put forward to this Committee. 
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
The Council’s constitution supports the governance of the Council and its 
decision making thereby assisting the Council to meet its strategic outcomes. 

 
 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 

procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance and Procurement 
 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Legal 

 
8.2 The proposed changes to the Council constitution were taken forward with 

Legal Service assistance. 
 
Equality 
 

8.3 There are no equality matters in this report. 
 
 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
Appendices 1 to 5 

 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
The Council constitution can be found at: http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-
democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution. 

Page 26

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution


 

  

Report for: Staffing & Remuneration Committee 16 March 2021/ Standards 
Committee June 2021 

 
Title: Appointment arrangements for the Monitoring Officer  
 
Report  
authorised by :  Dan Paul  Chief People Officer/ John Jones – Interim Monitoring 

Officer 
 
Lead Officer: Ian Morgan – Reward Strategy Manager 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Non Key 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration  

This report proposes to amend the Constitution to ensure that members remain 

responsible for taking steps for the appointment of the Monitoring Officer and to 

ensure the Monitoring Officer is correctly referred to within the Constitution. 

  
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 

Not applicable.  

 

3. Recommendations 

 
3.1 That the Committee recommend to the  Full Council meeting in July to agree 

amendments to the following parts of the Constitution: 

3.1.1 Part Two – Articles (Appendix 1). 
 

3.1.2 Part Three Section E Part 1 – Officer Scheme of Delegation (Appendix 2). 
 

3.1.3 Part Three Section E Part 2 – General Delegations to Directors (Appendix 
3). 
 

3.1.4 Part Three Section E Part 1 – Delegations to the Chief Executive and 
Statutory Officers (Appendix 4). 
 

3.1.5 Part Four Section K – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (Appendix 5). 
 

4. Reason for Decision 

 
4.1 The Council has a number of statutory obligations and powers regarding the 

appointment and dismissal of its most senior officers, codified in the above parts of 

the Constitution. 

 

Page 27



 

  

4.2 On 2 November 2020, the Staffing & Remuneration Committee considered changes 

to the role of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, which then included the 

statutory Monitoring Officer function. As a result, the role of the Assistant Director of 

Corporate Governance was deleted. The Monitoring Officer role became a Head of 

Service post. 

 

4.3 This meant that the Monitoring Officer inadvertently fell outside the steps to be taken 

by members in relation to appointments of chief officers. 

 

4.4 The relevant steps are set out in Part 4 Section K of the Constitution. This part is 

currently phrased so as to apply to the “Recruitment of the Head of Paid Service and 

Directors”. “Director” has the meaning given at Part 3 Section E Section 1 paragraph 

2.01 of the Constitution and include Assistant Directors. 

 

4.5 Therefore, the Monitoring Officer previously fell within this definition when part of the 

role of Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. However, it has now fallen 

outside of the definition as a result of becoming a Head of Service post. 

 

4.6 It is proposed to amend the Constitution so as to include reference to Statutory 

Officers in Part 4 Section K of the Constitution. The Statutory Officers are defined in 

Part 3 Section E Section 1 paragraph 2.01 of the Constitution and include the 

following: 

 

 The S151 Chief Finance Officer (This role is held by the Director of Finance) 

 The Monitoring Officer 

 The Director of Adult’s Services 

 The Director of Children’s Services 

 The Director of Public Health  
 

4.7 Therefore, all of the above Statutory Officers except the Monitoring Officer currently 

fall within Part 4 Section K as a result of being Directors. Accordingly, the proposed 

amendments will not alter the position as regards those officers. The only change 

resulting from the inclusion of Statutory Officers will be that the Monitoring Officer 

will again fall back within these provisions. 

 

4.8 It is also proposed to correct: 

 

4.8.1 References to the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance in the above 

parts of the Constitution that should now be amended to refer to the 

Monitoring Officer in order to reflect the deletion of the role of the Assistant 

Director of Corporate Governance. 

 

4.8.2 A typographical error in Part Three Section E Part 2 – General Delegations 

to Directors (Appendix 3). A reference to paragraph 14.04 of the Articles is 

Page 28



 

  

proposed to be amended to paragraph 13.04 because paragraph 14.04 does 

not exist. 

 

4.9 The proposed changes will ensure continuity in terms of Members’ powers in relation 

to the appointment of the Monitoring Officer and references within the Constitution 

that are intended to be to the Monitoring Officer. 

 

4.10 Changes to the Constitution are approved by the Full Council on the recommendation 

of the Standards Committee, in accordance with Article 14.03 of the Constitution. It is 

good practice to also consult with the relevant Committee, in this case the Staffing 

and Remuneration Committee, to obtain the Committee’s views on the proposal. 

 

5. Alternative options considered 

 

5.1 The alternative would be to maintain the current definitions in the Constitution. 

However, this would contravene the legal requirements set out below. It would also 

risk confusion because the role of the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance no 

longer exists. 

 
6. Background  

 

6.1 The Council has a duty to appoint a monitoring officer by virtue of section 5 of the 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

6.2 The Council’s standing orders must incorporate certain provisions in respect of the 

appointment of its monitoring officer, by virtue of the Local Authorities (Standing 

Orders) Regulations 1993/202. 

 

6.3 These provisions are contained in Part Four Section K of the Constitution. 

 

6.4 Therefore, the Constitution will not comply with this legal requirement unless Part Four 

Section K is amended to include reference to the Monitoring Officer rather than the 

Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. 

 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 

 

7.1 Ensuring that the definition of member appointments is clear supports the Council’s 

commitment to fair and transparent recruitment practice. 

 
8. Statutory Officers’ comments 

 

8.1 Chief Finance Officer 
 

Page 29



 

  

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations apart 
from  minor administration changes. 

 
8.2 Monitoring Officer 
 

The legal implications are set out within the body of this report.  
 
9. Use of Appendices 

 

9.1.1 Appendix 1: Part Two – Articles 
 

9.1.2 Appendix 2: Part Three Section E Part 1 – Officer Scheme of Delegation 
 

9.1.3 Appendix 3: Part Three Section E Part 2 – General Delegations to Directors 
 

9.1.4 Appendix 4: Part Three Section E Part 1 – Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 
 

9.1.5 Appendix 5: Part Four Section K – Officer Employment Procedure Rules 
 
10. Local government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 

10.1 Report for the Staffing and Remuneration Committee, 2nd November 2020: Changes 

to the role of Assistant Director Corporate Governance, which can be found at:  

 

https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s118996/ChangestoroleofADCorpo

rateGovernancePublicreport.pdf  

 

Page 30

https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s118996/ChangestoroleofADCorporateGovernancePublicreport.pdf
https://www.minutes.haringey.gov.uk/documents/s118996/ChangestoroleofADCorporateGovernancePublicreport.pdf


 

Page 1 of 4  

Report for:  Standards Committee – 29 June 2021 
 
Title: Proposed Amendments to the Constitution (Executive Functions) 
Report  
authorised by: Mark Stevens - Assistant Director Direct Services  
 
Ward(s) affected: Not applicable 
 
Report for Key/  
Non-Key Decision: Non-Key Decision  
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The Council Constitution governs the organisation of Council decision-making. 

It is kept under review and, when necessary, amendments are proposed to 
Standards Committee for consideration and recommendation on to Full Council, 
in accordance with Article 14.03 (Changes to the Constitution). 

 
1.2 This report takes forward minor deletions to Part Three, Section C 

Responsibility for functions: The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet & Cabinet 

Bodies - Matters reserved to the Executive - namely - paragraph 2.1 – sub 

section on Highways -  a)Approval of traffic calming works where more than 10 

objections have been received; and (c)Approval of any permanent traffic 

regulation order subject to valid objection and adds this responsibility to the 

Officer Scheme of Delegation for Environment and Neighbourhoods. 

 

2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
 

Not applicable. 
 

3. Recommendations  
 
The Standards Committee is asked: 
 

3.1 To approve the deletions to the Constitution set out at Appendix 1. 
 

3.2 To recommend that these changes to the Constitution are adopted by Full 
Council at its meeting on 19th of July 2021. 

 

4. Reasons for decision  
 

4.1 To ensure that the Constitution is updated and allows decision-making to be 
taken forward more efficiently and effectively. 

 

5. Alternative options considered. 
 

Page 31



 

Page 2 of 4  

To not agree the changes to the Council Constitution and/ or defer 
consideration. This option is not recommended as it would be contrary to the 
request made by officers.  

  
 

6. Background information 
 
6.1 Direct Services had been seeking delegated authority from Cabinet in recent 

Cabinet parking and highways-related reports to allow officers to take forward 
delegated decisions on traffic orders. However, it was ascertained that, as 
these were  Executive Leader, Cabinet and Cabinet Member responsibilities set 
out at Section C Part three of the Constitution, these decisions could not be 
delegated. 

 
6.2 Advice provided included that the Constitution has been referring to inaccurate 

terminology with the use of the wording of ‘traffic regulation order’ and this 
should read ‘traffic order’ as set out in Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Traffic 
regulation orders apply outside of Greater London but ‘traffic management 
orders’ (as an alternative to ‘traffic orders’) apply within Greater London. Traffic 
management orders or traffic orders are by-laws which define parking and 
some moving traffic rules and regulations. They can designate lengths of 
kerbside space for a specific use i.e. waiting and loading restrictions or parking 
bays.  

 
6.3 Permanent traffic orders may be made by the Council under s.6 of the 1984 

Act. 
 
6.4 The Council is required to consult with certain bodies and give public notice 

before making such a permanent traffic order (s.24(1)(c) and sch.9 of the 1984 
Act, regs.6-7 of the Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996/2489). 

 
6.5 Objections must be made in accordance with the requirements set out in within 

a specified period of at least 21 days and (reg.8 of the 1996 Regulations): 

 be made in writing; 

 state the grounds on which it is made; 

 be sent to the address specified in the notice of proposals. 

 6.6 Where an authority is making the objection following consultation, its objection 
must in addition state whether or not it is alleged that the order would have any 
direct effect on traffic on any road, other than a trunk road, in the area of the 
authority making the objection (reg.8 of the 1996 Regulations). 

 
6.7 Therefore, Legal Services, following counsel advice consider a ‘valid objection’ 

referred to in the Constitution (Part Three Section C Section 1 para.2.1 – a) and 
c) would most likely be an objection made in accordance with the 1996 
Regulations as outlined above.    

 
6.8 These are operational everyday decisions and contrast with the required policy 

and strategic decision-making role of the Cabinet as set out in paragraph 2.1.  
Also, in most cases, these are not key decisions as they would affect one ward. 

Page 32



 

Page 3 of 4  

It is proposed that this responsibility is removed from Executive functions and 
added to the Officer Scheme of Delegation for Environment and 
Neighbourhoods with some safeguards in place. This would be as follows: 

 Small traffic management schemes that are costed below £100k are taken 
by officer delegated decision in consultation with the Cabinet Member with 
the relevant portfolio. These would be deemed officer delegated decisions 
that are published on the Council’s website and available for public view. 

 Medium to large traffic management schemes that raise objections – these 
would be schemes that do not generate wider interest, don’t affect multiple 
wards, but could raise more than 10 objections. These would be taken 
forward as non-key decisions by the Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
the relevant portfolio. The report and decision notice would be published 5 
clear working days before the decision is taken and the Cabinet Member 
would make the decision through an individual signing. The decision would 
be published on the website and there would be no call-in as it is not a key 
decision. 

 Large traffic management schemes that will have an impact on multiple 
wards and will have a significant public interest would be taken forward by 
Cabinet. This would allow consideration of deputations. The decisions 
would be subject to call-in. 

   
6.9 There have been individual discussions with the Cabinet Member for Customer 

Service, Welfare and the Public Realm (with responsibility for schemes related 
to highways and parking matters), and Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport and the Climate Emergency and Deputy Leader of the Council (with 
responsibility for schemes related to transport matters) and they agree with 
these changes and consideration by Cabinet Members and the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods and/or the Assistant Director Direct Services.  
 

7. Contribution to strategic outcomes 
 
The Council’s Constitution supports the governance of the Council and its 
decision-making thereby assisting the Council to meet its strategic outcomes. 

 

8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including 
procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance and Procurement 
 

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Legal 

 
8.2 The proposed changes to the Council Constitution were taken forward with 

Legal Service assistance. 
 
Equality 
 

8.3 There are no equality matters in this report. 

Page 33



 

Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 

9. Use of Appendices 
 

9.1 Appendix 1 – Part Three, Section C Responsibility for functions: The Executive: 
The Leader, the Cabinet & Cabinet Bodies - Matters reserved to the Executive 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
The Council Constitution can be found at: http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-
democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution. 

Page 34

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/local-democracy/about-Council/Council-constitution


PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 1 of 34 
 

Part Two 
Articles 

 
Article 1 - The Constitution 
 
1.01  Powers of the Council 
 
The Council will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with the law 
and this Constitution. 
 
1.02  The Constitution 
 
This Constitution, and all its appendices, is the Constitution of the London 
Borough of Haringey. 
 
1.03  Purpose of the Constitution 
 
The purpose of the Constitution is to: 
 
1.  Enable the Council to provide clear leadership to the community in 

partnership with citizens, businesses and other organisations; 
2.  Support the active involvement of citizens in the process of local 

authority decision-making; 
3.  Help councillors represent their constituents more effectively; 
4.  Enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively; 
5.  Create a powerful and effective means of holding decision-makers to 

public account; 
6.  Ensure that no-one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they were 

directly involved; 
7.  Ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly identifiable 

to local people and that they explain the reasons for decisions; and 
8.  Provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the community. 
 
1.04  Interpretation and Review of the Constitution 
 
Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different 
courses of action, the Council will always choose that option which it thinks is 
closest to the purposes stated above. The Council will monitor and evaluate the 
operation of the Constitution as set out in Article 15. 

 
  

Appendix 1 
Page 35



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 2 of 34 
 

Article 2 - Members of the Council  
 
2.01  Composition and eligibility  
  

(a)  Composition. The Council will comprise 57 members, otherwise 
called councillors. Three members will be elected by the voters of 
each ward in accordance with a scheme drawn up by the Local 
Government Commission and approved by the Secretary of State 
or by the Electoral Commission.  

 
(b)  Eligibility. People can hold office as councillors if they are on the 

electoral register or if they have lived, worked or occupied 
property in the Borough for 12 months.  

 
2.02 Election and terms of councillors  

 
Election and terms. The regular election of councillors will be held on the first 
Thursday in May every four years beginning in 2002. The terms of office of 
councillors will start on the fourth day after being elected and will finish on the 
fourth day after the date of the next regular election. 

  
2.03  Roles and functions of all councillors  
 

(a)  Key roles. All councillors will:  
  

(i)  Collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a 
number of strategic and corporate management functions;  

  
(ii)  Contribute to the good governance of the area and actively 

encourage community participation and citizen 
involvement in decision making;  

  
(iii)  Effectively represent the interests of their ward and of 

individual constituents;  
  

(iv)  Respond to constituents' enquiries and representations, 
fairly and impartially;  

  
(v)  Participate in the governance of the Council;  

  
(vi)  Maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics; and 
 
(vii) Be available to represent the Council on other bodies.  

 
(b)  Rights and duties  
  

(i)  Councillors will have such rights of access to such 
documents, information, land and buildings of the Council 
as are necessary for the proper discharge of their functions 
and in accordance with the law.  

Page 36



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 3 of 34 
 

  
(ii)  Councillors will not make public information which is 

confidential or exempt without the consent of the Council 
or divulge information given in confidence to anyone other 
than a councillor or officer entitled to know it. However, a 
Committee may disclose information previously treated as 
“exempt” where such information is within the Committee’s 
terms of reference and such disclosure is reasonable, in 
the public interest, in good faith and does not breach any 
other reasonable requirements of the Council. The advice 
of the Monitoring Officer should be sought prior to any 
disclosure of such information. 

 
(iii)  For these purposes "confidential" and "exempt" 

information are defined in the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution which define 
councillors’ rights to information in more detail.  

  
2.04  Conduct  

 
Councillors will at all times observe the Member's Code of Conduct and the 
Protocol on Member/Officer Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution. 

  
2.05  Allowances  

 
Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the 
Members' Allowances Scheme set out in Part 6 of this Constitution.  
 
2.06 Political Groups 
 
The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 
require that a political group is treated as constituted when there is delivered 
to the Proper Officer a notice in writing signed by two or more members of the 
authority who wish to be treated as a political group. A political group ceases 
to be constituted as such if the number of members of that group is less than 
two.  
 

Page 37



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 4 of 34 
 

Article 3 – Citizens of The Council 
 
3.01  Citizens rights 
 
This Article explains the rights of citizens in Haringey. The rights of citizens to 
information and to participate are explained in more detail in the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution: 
 

(a)  Voting and petitions. Citizens on the electoral roll for the area 
have the right to vote and sign a petition to request a referendum 
for a change in the Council’s governance arrangements. 

 
(b)  Information. Citizens have the right to: 

 
(i)  Attend meetings of the Council and its committees except 

where confidential or exempt information is likely to be 
disclosed, and the meeting is therefore held in private; 

 
(ii)  Attend meetings of the Cabinet when key decisions are 

being made except where confidential or exempt 
information is likely to be disclosed, and the meeting is 
therefore held in private; 

  
(iii)  Find out from the forward plan what key decisions will be 

taken by the Cabinet, Cabinet Committees or individual 
Cabinet members and which meetings will be held in 
private; 

 
(iv)  See reports and background papers, and any records of 

decisions made by the Council and its committees and the 
Cabinet, its committees, individual Cabinet members and 
Officers; and 

 
(v)  Inspect the Council's accounts and make their views 

known to the external auditor. 
  

(vi)  Be informed in writing whether the Council holds any 
information as requested under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. If the information is held by the 
Council, citizens have the right to have that information 
communicated to them except where such information is 
the subject of an exemption under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. 

 
(c)  Participation. 

 
The Council is committed to helping people contribute to how 
decisions are made about local services, and will therefore 
support a wide range of consultations to hear residents’ views. 
The Council also wants to develop more ways of working with 

Page 38



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 5 of 34 
 

local people and communities, particularly hard to reach groups 
such as young people and minority ethnic communities. In 
addition, individual citizens of Haringey have the following rights 
under this Constitution: 

 
(i)  The right to participate in any public sessions arranged for 

members of the Cabinet to answer questions from 
Haringey residents. 

 
(ii)  The right to be asked to contribute to the work of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and its scrutiny panels 
and reviews. 

 
(iii)  The right to attend as part of a deputation to the Cabinet 

and to Council in accordance with the relevant rules. 
 

(d)  Representations and Complaints. Citizens wishing to complain 
may: 

 
(i)  Make representations to their ward councillors or to 

members of the Cabinet; 
 

(ii)  Make a formal complaint about any Council service to the 
Council itself under its complaints scheme; 

 
(iii)  Complain to the Ombudsman after using the Council’s own 

complaints scheme; 
 

(iv)  Make a formal complaint about a  breach of the Member’s 
Code of Conduct. 

 
(e)  Petitions 

 
People on the electoral roll for the Council’s area may sign a 
petition to request a referendum for a change in the Council’s 
governance arrangements. Citizens may also present petitions on 
other matters to the Cabinet, to Council or their ward member. 

 
3.02 Citizens responsibilities 
 
There are a number of ways that Haringey citizens can contribute to a 
flourishing democratic local authority and civic culture, which this Constitution 
is intended to support: 
 

(i)  Assisting the Council with the compilation of the electoral register 
(by meeting their obligations to provide information about 
themselves) and respecting any requirements for proper use of 
this information; 

 

Page 39



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 6 of 34 
 

(ii)  Exercising their right to vote in local, regional, and national and 
European elections; 

 
(iii)  Respecting and valuing the diversity of communities and their 

views within a densely populated urban area such as Haringey; 
 
(iv)  Behaving in socially and morally responsible ways, towards those 

in authority and towards each other; 
 
(v)  Meeting their obligations in relation to the Council, such as paying 

their council tax, ensuring their child attends school, etc. 
 
(vi)  Citizens must not be violent, abusing or threatening to councillors 

or officers and must not wilfully harm things owned by the Council, 
councillors or officers. 

 
  

Page 40



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 7 of 34 
 

Article 4 - The Full Council  
  
4.01  Meanings  
  

(a)  Policy Framework. These are the plans and strategies that must 
be reserved to the full Council for approval:  

 - Annual Library Plan 
 - Best Value Performance Plan 
 - Crime and Disorder Reduction (community safety) Strategy 
 - Development Plan documents 
 - Youth Justice Plan 
 - Statement of Gambling Policy 

- Statement of Licensing Policy 
 - Treasury Management Strategy 
 
 Any other policies the law requires must be approved by full 

Council. 
 

Such other plans and strategies that the Council agrees from time 
to time that it should consider as part of its Policy Framework: 

 - Housing Strategy 
 

(b)  Budget. The budget includes the allocation of financial resources 
to different services and projects, proposed contingency funds, 
setting the council tax and decisions relating to the control of the 
Council's borrowing requirements, the control of its capital 
expenditure and the setting of virement limits. The determination 
of the Council Tax Base is delegated to the Chief Finance Officer 
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and the 
Cabinet Advisory Board.  

 
(c)  Housing Land Transfer. Housing Land Transfer means the 

approval or adoption of applications (whether in draft form or not) 
to the Secretary of State for approval of a programme of disposal 
of 500 or more properties to a person under the Leasehold 
Reform, Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 or to dispose 
of land used for residential purposes where approval is required 
under sections 32 or 43 of the Housing Act 1985.  

 
4.02  Functions of the full Council  
 
Only the Council will exercise the following functions:  

  
(a)  Adopting and changing the Constitution;  
(b)  Approving or adopting the policy framework as set out in the 

appropriate schedule above;  
(c)  Approving the budget and levying council tax; 
(d)  Determining the borrowing limits for the authority for each 

financial year and the proportions of borrowing that are to be set 
at variable rates;  

Page 41



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 8 of 34 
 

(e) Making or revising a Council Tax Reduction Scheme; 
(f) Approval of the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging 

Schedule;  
(g) Approval of Development Plan Documents (DPDs) prior to 

submission to the Secretary of State; 
(h)  Approving any application to the Secretary of State in respect of 

any Housing Land Transfer as set out in Article 4.01 (c) above;  
(i)  Subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution, making 
decisions about any matter in the discharge of an Cabinet function 
which is covered by the policy framework or the budget where the 
decision maker is minded to make it in a manner which would be 
contrary to the policy framework or contrary to/or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget;  

(j)  Electing the Leader;  
(k)  Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for committees, 

deciding on their composition and making appointments to them 
and delegating functions to them from time to time as may be 
appropriate;  

(l)  Agreeing recommendations arising from Scrutiny Reviews of non-
executive functions;  

(m)  Deciding on recommendations arising from Scrutiny Reviews not 
accepted by the Cabinet and referred by the Chair of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee;  

(n)  Agreeing and/or amending the Scheme of Delegations to Officers 
with respect to non-executive functions;  

(o)  Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the 
appointment is a Cabinet function or has been delegated by the 
Council;  

(p)  Adopting and amending the Members’ Allowances Scheme;  
(q)  Changing the name of the area, conferring the title of honorary 

alderman or freedom of the borough and establishing any new 
Civic Link;  

(r)  Confirming the appointment or dismissal of the Head of Paid 
Service;  

(s)  Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting bylaws and 
promoting or opposing the making of local legislation or personal 
Bills including the adoption of any legislation where the Council 
has a discretion;  

(t)  All local choice functions set out in Part 3 of this Constitution 
which the Council decides should be undertaken by itself rather 
than the Cabinet, or any Committee, Sub-Committee or officer;  

(u)  Entering into, or confirming existing, joint arrangements with other 
local authorities unless this only concerns either 
i) “executive” functions when the decision is for the Cabinet; 
or 
ii) the creation of joint sub-committees by the Health and 
Wellbeing Board pursuant to s198 of the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012; 

(v)  Adopting the Members’ Code of Conduct;  

Page 42



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 9 of 34 
 

(w)  Approving Pilot Schemes for Local Elections;  
(x) To discharge all licensing functions and such other matters 

which must be reserved to the Council as specified in the 
Licensing Act 2003 (the “Act”), or any Regulations published in 
relation to the Act or any other legislation or any statute or 
regulations amending, consolidating or replacing them including 
approving, reviewing and revising any Statement of Licensing 
Policy in relation to the Licensing Act 2003; 

(y)  To discharge all functions which must be reserved to full Council 
as specified in the Gambling Act 2005, or any other ancillary 
regulations or legislative provisions amending, consolidating or 
replacing the same, including:  
(i)  approving and revising any Statement of Licensing Policy;  
(ii)  resolving not to issue any casino premises licences in the 

next three years; 
(z)  Adopting Standing Orders for the Council and Standing Orders as 

to Contracts;  
(za)  Making any decisions in respect of non-Executive functions which 

have not been expressly delegated elsewhere;  
(zb)  All matters that must be reserved to Council under the Financial 

Regulations including the adoption and amendment of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the consideration 
of annual, mid-year monitoring reports and an out-turn report after 
the close of the year on treasury management policies and 
practices; and  

(zc)  All other matters that, by law, must be reserved to Council.  
 
4.03 Council meetings  
 
There are four types of Council meetings:  
 

(a) The Annual meeting; 
(b) The Budget Setting meeting; 
(c) Ordinary meetings; 
(d) Extraordinary meetings. 

 
They will be conducted in accordance with the Standing Orders (Council 
Procedure Rules) in Part 4 of this Constitution. Council meetings will be chaired 
by the Mayor if he/she is present. If the Mayor is not present, Council will select 
another Councillor to take the Chair. The Deputy Mayor does not automatically 
chair the meeting in the Mayor's absence. The Council may select the Deputy 
Mayor if it so wishes.  
  
4.04  Responsibility for functions  
 
The Council will maintain the information in Part 3 of this Constitution setting 
out the responsibilities for the Council's functions that are not the responsibility 
of the Cabinet. 
  

Page 43



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 10 of 34 
 

Article 5 - Chairing the Council  
  
5.01  Role and function of the Mayor  
 
The Mayor will have the following roles and functions:  

  
1.  To uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution, and to interpret 

the Constitution when necessary;  
 

2.  To preside over meetings of the Council so that its business can be 
carried out efficiently and with regard to the rights of councillors and the 
interests of the community;  
 

3.  To ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters 
of concern to the local community and the place at which members who 
are not members of the Cabinet or hold committee chairs are able to 
hold the Cabinet and committee chairs to account;  
 

4.  To promote public involvement in the Council's activities;  
 

5.  To be the conscience of the Council; and  
 

6.  To attend such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and he/she 
determines appropriate.  

 
5.02 First Citizen.  
 
The Mayor shall take precedence i.e. shall be the first citizen of the London 
Borough of Haringey. 
 
  

Page 44



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 11 of 34 
 

Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny 
 
6.01  Terms of reference  

 
The Council will appoint an Overview and Scrutiny Committee to discharge the 
functions conferred by section 9F of the Local Government Act 2000, the Health 
& Social Care Act 2001 and the NHS Reform & Health Professionals Act 2002.  
 
6.02. General role  

 
Within its terms of reference, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may:  

 
(a)  Exercise an overview of the forward plan;  
(b)  Review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in 

connection with the discharge of any of the Cabinet’s or Council’s 
functions;  

(c)  Make reports and recommendations to the full Council, the 
Cabinet or relevant non-Executive Committee in connection with 
the discharge of any functions;  

(d)  Make reports or recommendations on matters affecting the area 
or its inhabitants;  

(e)  Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, key decisions 
made but not yet implemented by the Executive;  

(f)  Receive the reports and recommendations of its commissioned 
Scrutiny Review Panels; and  

(g)  In accordance with statutory regulations to review and scrutinise 
matters relating to the health service within the Authority’s area 
and to make reports and recommendations thereon to local NHS 
bodies; 

(h) Enter into or appoint such joint overview and scrutiny committees 
that include the London Borough of Haringey and other boroughs 
for the purpose of responding to consultation by NHS bodies on 
proposals for substantial variation or development in the provision 
of health services as required by The Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013. 

 
6.03 Specific functions  
  

(a)  Scrutiny Review Panels.  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall appoint Scrutiny 
Review Panels in order to discharge the Overview and Scrutiny 
role for designated public services and will co-ordinate their 
respective roles.  

 
(b)  Policy development and review.  
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and any Scrutiny Review 
Panels it may establish may:  

Page 45



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 12 of 34 
 

 
(i) Assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of 

its budget and policy framework by in-depth analysis of 
policy issues;  

(ii)  Conduct research, community and other consultation in 
the analysis of policy issues and possible options;  

(iii)  Consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and 
enhance community participation in the development of 
policy options;  

(iv)  Question members of the Cabinet and chief officers about 
their views on issues and proposals affecting the area; and  

(v)  Liaise with other external organisations operating in the 
area, whether national, regional or local, to ensure that the 
interests of local people are enhanced by collaborative 
working.  

  
(c)  Scrutiny.  
 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and any Scrutiny Review 
Panels it may establish may:  

 
(i)  Review and scrutinise the decisions made by and 

performance of the Cabinet and Council officers both in 
relation to individual decisions and over time;  

(ii)  Review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in 
relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or 
particular service areas;  

(iii)  Question members of the Cabinet and chief officers about 
their decisions and performance, whether generally in 
comparison with service plans and targets over a period of 
time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or 
projects;  

(iv)  Make recommendations to the Cabinet or relevant non-
executive Committee arising from the outcome of the 
scrutiny process;  

(v)  Review and scrutinise the performance of other public 
bodies in the area and invite reports from them by 
requesting them to address the overview and scrutiny 
committee and local people about their activities and 
performance; and  

(vi)  Question and gather evidence from any person (with their 
consent).  

  
(d)  Finance  
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee may exercise overall 
responsibility for the finances made available to them.  

 
 
 

Page 46



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 13 of 34 
 

(e)  Annual report.  
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee must report annually to full 
Council on their workings and make recommendations for future 
work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.  

 
6.04  Proceedings of Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and any Scrutiny Review Panels it may 
establish will conduct their proceedings in accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.  
 
6.05  Votes of No Confidence  
 
The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or the Chair of a Scrutiny 
Review Panel shall cease to hold that office as a Scrutiny member if a vote of 
no confidence, of which notice appears on the agenda, is carried at the meeting 
of the relevant body. The responsibilities of that member shall be carried out by 
the relevant Vice-Chair until such time as a subsequent meeting of that body 
has been notified of the appointment of a replacement or the reappointment of 
the member concerned. In the event of all members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee having been removed from office in this way at any time, 
Scrutiny functions shall in the interim be carried out by full Council.  
 
  

Page 47



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 14 of 34 
 

Article 7 - The Leader and the Cabinet  
 
7.01 The Leader  

 
The Leader will be a councillor elected to the position of Leader by the Council. 
The Leader may exercise any “executive” functions of the local authority even 
if delegated elsewhere in this Constitution except those functions which by law 
must be discharged by an officer. Unless the context indicates otherwise, where 
there is a reference in this Constitution to a decision which may be taken by the 
Cabinet meeting, by a Cabinet Committee or subordinate body or by an 
individual Cabinet member, that decision may be taken by the Leader 
personally, or the Leader may choose to allocate that decision to an individual 
Cabinet member or to a Committee of the Cabinet.  

 
7.02 The Leader will hold office until:  
 

(a)  He/she resigns from the office; or  
(b) He/she is disqualified from being a councillor by order of a court; 
(c)  He/she is no longer a councillor; or  
(d)  He/she is removed from office by resolution of the Council under 

Article 7.06; or  
(e)  The Annual Meeting following the Council Elections after his/her 

election as Leader.  
 
7.03 The Cabinet 

 
The Cabinet will carry out all of the local authority's “executive” functions that 
are not the responsibility of any other part of the local authority, whether by law 
or under this Constitution, unless the Leader decides to discharge them 
personally or allocate them to an individual Cabinet member or a Committee of 
the Cabinet.  

 
7.04 Form and Composition  

 
The Cabinet will consist of the Cabinet Leader together with between 2 and 9 
other councillors ("Cabinet Members") appointed to the Cabinet by the Leader 
but may not include the Mayor or Deputy Mayor. 
 
7.05 Other Cabinet members  

 
(i)  The Leader will determine the number of Cabinet members to be 

appointed which will be between 2 and 9 (in addition to the 
Leader). 
 

(ii)  Each Cabinet member will be appointed by the Leader to cover 
one of the specific portfolio responsibilities (other than those 
reserved to the Leader) determined by the Leader. The Leader or 
a Cabinet member must hold the specific statutory portfolio 
responsibility for Children’s Services and a separate portfolio 
responsibility for Adult Services.  

Page 48



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 15 of 34 
 

 
(iii) One Cabinet member will be appointed as Deputy Leader with 

power to exercise the Leader’s functions in the event that the 
Leader is unable to act or the office is vacant.  
 

(iv) Individual Cabinet members may exercise powers delegated by 
The Leader within their specific portfolio responsibilities as set out 
in Part 3.  
 

(v) Cabinet members shall hold office until one of the events (a) to 
(e) below: 

 
(a)  They resign from office; or  
(b) They are disqualified from being councillors by order of a 

court; 
(c)  They are no longer councillors; or  
(d)  They are removed from office, either individually or 

collectively, by the Leader; or  
(e)  The Annual Meeting following the Council Elections after 

their appointment.  
 
7.06 Votes of No Confidence  
 
The Leader shall cease to hold office if a vote of no confidence, of which notice 
appears on the agenda, is carried at a meeting of the full Council by a majority 
of the members of the whole Council then present. The responsibilities of the 
Leader shall then be carried out by the Deputy Leader until such time as the 
election of a replacement Leader, or the re-election of the previous Leader, by 
full Council. The election of the new Leader may take place at the meeting when 
the vote of no confidence was carried or at a subsequent meeting.  
 
7.07  Default Provisions 

 
(i) In the event that Leader is unable to act or the office of Leader is 

vacant and, at the same time, the Deputy Leader is unable to act 
or the office of Deputy Leader is vacant, then the other Cabinet 
members shall act collectively in place of the Leader until such 
time as a new Leader is elected by the full Council.  

 
(ii) In the event that no Cabinet members are able to act or remain in 

office then all functions of the Leader and Cabinet members shall 
be exercised by the Chief Executive acting so far as is practicable 
in consultation with the remaining Cabinet members or the Mayor, 
if no Cabinet members remain in office (or Deputy Mayor if the 
Mayor is unable to act), until such time as a new Leader is elected 
by the full Council.  

 
 
 
 

Page 49



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 16 of 34 
 

7.08 Proceedings of the Cabinet  
 
Proceedings of the Cabinet, Cabinet Committees and decisions by individual 
Cabinet members shall take place in accordance with the Cabinet Procedure 
Rules set out in Part 4.  
 
7.09 Responsibility for Functions  
 

(i) The Leader may discharge all the Council’s “executive” functions 
or may arrange for the discharge of any of those functions by: 
 
(a) The Cabinet; 
(b) A Cabinet member; 
(c) A Committee of the Cabinet; or 
(d) An officer 

 
(ii) The Leader will maintain a list in this Constitution or the 

appendices to it setting out which individual Cabinet members, 
Committees of the Cabinet or officers are responsible for the 
exercise of particular Cabinet functions.  

 
  

Page 50



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 17 of 34 
 

Article 8 - Non-Executive Committees 
  
8.01  A number of functions such as planning control, licensing, health and 

safety regulation, electoral matters, local act powers, employee terms 
and conditions and pensions matters are not Executive functions for 
which the Cabinet is responsible. These matters are excluded from the 
Executive functions by law, regulations or the provisions of this 
Constitution.  

 
8.02  The Council shall appoint the Committees set out in Part 3 Section B of 

this Constitution to discharge the functions described. These include a 
Committee to be called the Regulatory Committee to be responsible for 
planning control and licensing matters and a Committee to be called the 
Corporate Committee to be responsible for other non-executive 
functions as specified under legislation that are not reserved to full 
Council or delegated to any other Committee, Sub-Committee, Panel or 
other body described in Part 3 of this Constitution or an appendix to it. 
The Council’s functions as statutory trustee of the Alexandra Palace and 
Park charitable trust are discharged by the Alexandra Palace and Park 
Board. 

 
8.03  The Council’s non-executive functions are currently set out in Statutory 

Instrument 2000 No. 2853, and subsequent amending Regulations. 
 
8.04  The Committees described above will be established at the Annual 

Meeting of the Council.  
  
8.05  The Committees described above will establish appropriate sub-

committees, whose terms of reference are set out in Part 3 of this 
Constitution or an appendix to it.  

  
8.06  Proceedings of the Committees and their sub committees shall take 

place in accordance with the Council Committee Procedure Rules in Part 
4 of this Constitution.  

 
  

Page 51



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 18 of 34 
 

Article 9 - The Standards Committee  
 
9.01  Standards Committee  
 
The Council meeting will establish a Standards Committee to promote and 
maintain high standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of the 
Council.  
 
9.02  Composition  
 
The Standards Committee will be composed of councillors appointed on the 
basis of political balance. In addition, the Standards Committee may appoint up 
to six non-voting co-opted members.  

  
Quorum. The quorum of the Standards Committee is three.  
 
9.03  Role and Function  
 
The Standards Committee will have the following roles and functions:  
  

(a) Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
councillors, co-opted members and representatives of religious 
organisations and parent governor representatives; 

(b)  Assisting the Leader, councillors, co-opted members and 
representatives of religious organisations and parent governor 
representatives to observe the Members’ Code of 
Conduct; 

(c)  Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct; 

(d)  Monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
(e)  Advising, training or arranging to train councillors and co-opted 

members on matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct 
and the ethical framework; 

(f)  Granting dispensations to councillors and co-opted members 
from requirements relating to interests set out in the Members’ 
Code of Conduct; 

(g)  Advising the Council on codes and protocols forming the 
Council’s ethical framework and its governance arrangements, 
monitoring the effectiveness of those arrangements and making 
reports and recommendations accordingly; 

 (i) Responding to national reviews and consultations on standards 
related issues; 

 (j) Granting exemptions for politically restricted posts and giving 
directions to include a post on the list of restricted posts; 

(k) Advising the Council on the appointment of independent persons 
and taking steps to select them; 

(l) Considering amendments to the Constitution and recommending 
proposals to full Council for approval  

 
 

Page 52



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 19 of 34 
 

9.04 Assessment Sub-Committee 
 

The Standards Committee will establish an Assessment Sub-Committee to 
assess allegations that a member or co-opted member has failed to comply with 
the Members’ Code of Conduct, as referred by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
9.05 Composition 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee will be composed of councillors appointed on 
the basis of political balance. 
 
9.06 Role and Function 

 
The Assessment Sub-Committee will have the following roles and functions: 

 
To consider all allegations referred to the Sub-Committee by the Monitoring 
Officer that a member or co-opted member has failed to comply with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct and to determine whether the allegation: 

 
(a) merits no further investigation and is dismissed, or 
(b) merits further investigation. 

 
9.07 Hearing Sub-Committee 
 
The Standards Committee will establish a Hearing Sub-Committee to conduct 
hearings into allegations that a member or co-opted member has failed to 
comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct and to determine such allegations.  
 
9.08 Composition 
 
The Hearing Sub-Committee will be composed of councillors appointed on the 
basis of political balance. 
 
9.09 Role and Function 
 
The Hearing Sub-Committee will have the following roles and functions: 

 
(a) To conduct hearings into allegations referred for investigation by the 

Assessment Sub-Committee that a member or co-opted member 
has failed to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

(b) To determine whether or not the member or co-opted member did/did 
not fail to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

(c) Where the Sub-Committee has determined that a member has failed 
to comply with the Members’ Code of Conduct to take such action as 
it may lawfully take. 

(d) In consequence of the hearing and determination of any allegation 
to make recommendations to the Council with a view to promoting 
high standards of conduct amongst members. 

 
  

Page 53



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 20 of 34 
 

Article 10 Joint Arrangements  
 
10.01 Arrangements to promote well being  

 
The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, in order to promote 
the economic, social or environmental well-being of its area, may:  

 
(a)  Enter into arrangements or agreements with any person or body:  
(b)  Co-operate with, or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of, any person 

or body; and  
(c)  Exercise on behalf of that person or body any functions of that person or 

body.  
 
10.02 Joint arrangements  
 
(a)  The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more local 

authorities and/or their Executives to exercise functions that are not 
Executive functions in any of the participating authorities, or to advise 
the Council. Such arrangements may involve the appointment of a joint 
committee or board within these other local authorities. The Council may, 
where the legislation allows, also establish other joint arrangements with, 
for example, health service organisations. These other arrangements 
are called “boards” in this Constitution.  
 

(b)  The Council may establish joint arrangements with one or more local 
authorities and their Executives to exercise functions that are partly 
Executive and partly Non-Executive (“mixed functions”). Such 
arrangements may involve the appointment of a joint committee or board 
with these other local authorities or bodies. Where the Council appoints 
only one member to such a joint committee, that member may be, but 
need not be, a Cabinet member. Where the Council appoints more than 
one member to such a joint committee, at least one of them shall be a 
Cabinet member.  
 

(c)  The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, may establish 
joint arrangements with the Executives of one or more local authorities 
or other organisations to exercise functions that are Executive functions 
or to advise the Cabinet. Such arrangements may involve the 
appointment of joint committees or boards with these other local 
authorities or bodies. The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s 
agreement, may, where the legislation allows, also establish other joint 
arrangements with, for example, health service organisations.  
 

(d)  Except as set out below or otherwise provided in legislation, the Leader 
or the Cabinet may only appoint Cabinet members to a joint committee 
or board and those members need not reflect the political composition of 
the local authority as a whole.  

  
(e)  The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, may appoint 

members to a joint committee or board from outside the Cabinet in the 

Page 54



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 21 of 34 
 

circumstances where the joint committee has functions for only part of 
the area of the authority, and that area is smaller than two-fifths of the 
authority by area or population. In such cases, the Cabinet may appoint 
to the joint committee any councillor who is a member for a ward that is 
wholly or partly contained within the area. The political balance 
requirements do not apply to such appointments.  

  
(f)  Details of any existing joint arrangements including any delegations to 

joint committees will be found at the end of this Article, and their terms 
of reference included in Part 3 Responsibility for Functions, Section DA. 

 
10.03 Access to information  
  
(a)  The Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution apply.  
  
(b)  If all the members of a joint committee or board are members of the 

Cabinet in each of the participating authorities then the access to 
information rules relating to the Executive in the Local Government Act 
2000 will apply.  

  
(c)  If the joint committee or board contains members who are not on the 

Cabinet of any participating authority then the access to information rules 
in Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972 will apply.  

  
10.04 Delegation to and from other local authorities  
  
(a)  The Council may delegate non-Executive functions to another local 

authority or, in certain circumstances, the Executive of another local 
authority.  

  
(b)  The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, may delegate 

Executive functions to another local authority or the Executive of another 
local authority in certain circumstances.  
 

(c) The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another 
local authority shall be reserved to the Council meeting in the case of 
non-executive or mixed functions and to the Leader, or the Cabinet with 
the Leader’s agreement, in the case of executive functions. 

 
10.05  Delegation to and from other organisations  
  
(a)  The Council may delegate non-Executive functions to other 

organisations or boards where legislation allows.  
  
(b)  The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, may delegate 

Executive functions to other organisations or boards where legislation 
allows.  
 

(c) The decision whether or not to accept such a delegation from another 
organisation or board shall be reserved to the Council in the case of non-

Page 55



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 22 of 34 
 

executive or mixed functions and to  the Leader, or the Cabinet with 
the Leader’s agreement, in the case of executive functions. 

 
(d) The Leader, or the Cabinet with the Leader’s agreement, may appoint 

other Cabinet members to act as the Leader’s representatives and to 
exercise executive functions at meetings of the Haringey Strategic 
Partnership (HSP) and its subordinate bodies. Decisions taken by a 
Cabinet member or members in this way will have immediate effect. For 
the avoidance of doubt, the same will apply where the Leader sits in 
person as a member of the HSP or its subordinate bodies. 

.  
10.06  Contracting out  

  
The Council for non-executive functions, and the Leader, or the Cabinet 
with the Leader’s agreement, for executive functions, may contract out 
to another body or organisation functions which may be exercised by an 
officer and which are subject to an order under section 70 of the 
Delegation and Contracting Out Act 1994, or under contracting 
arrangements where the contractor acts as the Council's agent under 
usual contracting principles, provided there is no delegation of the 
Council's discretionary decision-making.  

 
10.07  London Councils Arrangements for Co-ordinating Response to 

Emergencies  
  
(a)  The Council and Cabinet have resolved to delegate their powers under 

section 138 of the Local Government Act 1972 (power to incur 
expenditure to avert or alleviate the effects of an emergency or disaster) 
to an outside Chief Executive appointed to co-ordinate the response of 
London local authorities to a major incident or a lesser emergency. This 
“L.A. Gold” will be appointed under arrangements approved by Central 
Government, London Councils and the London Resilience Team.  

 
(b)  Where an incident, emergency or other event emerges over a period of 

time (such as a pandemic or extreme weather), and where the Gold Co-
ordination Group (“Gold Command”) may not have been convened, L.A. 
Gold will be empowered on behalf of the London local authorities to co-
ordinate any local authority response, as necessary, providing advice 
and guidance as required. In these circumstances L.A. Gold will not have 
power to incur expenditure or to exercise delegated powers unless 
authorised under paragraphs (c)(ii), (d)(ii) or (e) below.  

  
(c)  The delegation of powers under section 138 of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to L.A. Gold will only have effect in the following circumstances: 
  
(i) after the convening of Gold Command, normally led by the Police, 

in response to the declaration of a major incident, or 
 
(i) for other disruptive events such as extreme weather which do not 

require the convening of Gold Command, after the convening of 

Page 56



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 23 of 34 
 

a London Partnership Meeting, normally led by the London 
Resilience Team, provided that the agreement of London 
Councils (under delegated powers) is also secured. 

 
(d)  Subject to paragraph (e) below, L.A. Gold will only have power to incur 

expenditure once:  
 

(i) the Minister of State confirms that H.M. Government will 
reimburse expenditure reasonably incurred by L.A. Gold in taking 
immediate action to safeguard life or property or to prevent 
suffering or severe inconvenience, or  

 
(ii)  The Council or Councils in whose area the incident occurs confirm 

that it/they will reimburse expenditure incurred for the purposes in 
(i) above.  

 
(e) In the event that L.A. Gold has not been able to receive confirmation 

from the Council(s) in whose area the incident has occurred that 
expenditure will be reimbursed, and where it is absolutely essential for 
L.A. Gold to incur expenditure for the purposes in paragraph (d)(i) above, 
or to promote community cohesion and a return to normality, it has been 
agreed that the Council(s) affected will meet that expenditure provide it 
is kept to minimum levels and does not exceed £1 million in total while 
confirmation of reimbursement is being sought. 

 
(f)  All Council officers are authorised to take any action in accordance with 

instructions issued by the appointed L.A. Gold under the arrangements 
described above. 

  
10.08  Outside Bodies  
  
(a)  Introduction  
 

(i) The Council has nomination rights to a large number of different 
external bodies (referred to as "organisations"). The practice of 
making nominations to organisations is a benefit to the Council 
and the links created contribute to the social well-being of the 
Borough. Some of these arrangements involve the formal 
delegation of the Council’s powers to organisations but this is not 
true in most cases.  

 
(ii)  These organisations can be categorised as follows:  

 
(A)  "Association bodies" e.g. Local Government Association or 

Association of London Government joint committees and 
panels,  

(B)  "Statutory bodies" i.e. where Haringey needs to be 
represented by law, for example, the Alexandra Park & 
Palace Advisory Committee,  

Page 57



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 24 of 34 
 

(C)  "Partnership bodies" which usually involve the Council 
working with other agencies on local issues or projects, 

(D)  "Trusts and Foundations" which generally have more 
specific and prescribed objectives, for example, the 
Tottenham Grammar School Foundation, and  

(E)  "Voluntary/Community bodies" which cover a very wide 
spectrum of organisations serving the community, or 
community groups, in various ways. 

(F)  “School Governing bodies” are independent organisations 
but the precise relationship to the Council varies according 
to the type of School.  

 
(b)  Nominations Procedure  

 
(i)  Nominations to all organisations will be made or confirmed at 

each Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Council. In the case 
of Association and “Partnership” bodies, which mainly exercise 
"executive" functions at present, nominations of Cabinet 
members will be made by the Leader, or the Cabinet with the 
Leader’s agreement, and merely recorded in the complete list 
approved at the AGM.  

  
(ii)  The capacity in which members are nominated, the duration of 

the appointment and any other relevant terms and conditions will 
be set out in the report to the AGM and recorded in the minutes. 
Nominations will be stated as being made "at the request of the 
Council".  

 
(iii)  A full list of existing and newly nominated or appointed councillors 

will be presented to the next meeting of full Council after the AGM 
setting out the name of the organisation, terms of appointment 
and status or capacity of the councillor within the organisation.  

 
(iv) Future nominations to voluntary or community bodies will 

generally be in a non-voting, "observer" capacity only, in order to 
avoid the greater potential for conflicts of interest. Nominated 
members will not participate in management or decision-making 
within the organisation. Their role will be to assist in the exchange 
of information and views between the organisation and the 
Council.  

 
(v)  Nominations to other organisations will generally be in a full, 

voting capacity i.e. the member should participate fully in 
management and decision making within the organisation, as 
appropriate, and should vote at its management committee. 
Exceptions would be made where the organisation so requested 
or its own constitution or ground rules so required. Nominations 
to trusts, for example, would have to be in a full, voting (not an 
“observer”) capacity since the purpose of the nomination would 
be for the member to have a decision making role.  

Page 58



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 25 of 34 
 

 
(c)  Members' Conduct  
 

(i)  The Members' Code of Conduct, as set out in the Council's 
Constitution, applies to members' activities as representatives in 
any capacity on any outside body.  

 
(ii)  In addition, nominated members will be required to observe the 

Constitution or rules of the organisation itself, except in so far as 
there might, unusually, be a conflict with the Council's Members’ 
Code of Conduct. Members should seek advice from the 
Monitoring Officer if they think that any such conflict could arise.  

 
(iii)  Members may also be under legal duties imposed in respect of 

their roles in specific types of organisation e.g. as Directors of 
Limited Companies or as Charity Trustees. Further Guidance will 
be available to members outside the text of this Constitution.  

 
10.09 Current Joint arrangements 
 
The Council currently has formal joint arrangements as follows;  
 
Health and Wellbeing Board Joint sub-committee (with Islington Council) 

Page 59



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 26 of 34 
 

Article 11 – Officers 
  
11.01 Management Structure 
  
(a)  General. The Council may engage such staff (referred to as officers) as 

it considers necessary to carry out its functions. For the avoidance of 
doubt, the words ‘staff’ ‘employees’ or ‘officers’ includes agency workers, 
consultants and secondees to the authority over whom the authority has 
managerial control.  

 
(b)  Senior Management. The Council will engage the posts of Chief 

Executive and senior managers who have the responsibilities set out 
below and make up the Council’s Corporate Board*:1  

 
 
Post 

 
Functions and Responsibilities 

Chief Executive Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, 
Corporate Governance, Legal and 
Democratic Services, Audit, Policy and 
Business Management and 
Communications 

Director of Adults and 
Health 

Adults, Public Health, Commissioning  

Director of Finance Corporate Finance, Departmental Finance, 

Director of Housing 
Regeneration, and Planning  

Planning, Regeneration, Housing Strategy, 
Corporate Property and Major Projects, 
Housing 

Director for Environment 
and Neighbourhoods 

Procurement, Environmental services, 
community safety, Emergency Planning 
and Civil Contingencies 

Director for Children’s 
Services 

Children, Families, Schools 

 
(c)  Statutory officers  
 

The Council has to appoint officers to fulfil the statutory roles identified 
in Part 3, Section E, Section 3. 

 
In addition to the functions set out in Part 3 the Head of Paid Service (Chief 
Executive), Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director of Corporate Governance) 
and Chief Finance Officer (Director of Finance) have additional functions:   
 
11.02 Functions of the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive) 
  

 
*A chart of the Council’s Corporate Board is appended to this Constitution. 

Page 60



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 27 of 34 
 

(a) Structure. The Head of Paid Service will determine and publicise a 
description of the overall departmental structure of the Council showing 
the management structure and deployment of officers. This is set out in 
Appendix C to this Constitution. 

  
(b) Discharge of functions by the Council. The Head of Paid Service will 

report to full Council on the manner in which the discharge of the 
Council's functions is co-ordinated, the number and grade of officers 
required for the discharge of functions and the organisation of officers.  

 
(c)  Restrictions on functions. The Head of Paid Service may not be the 

Monitoring Officer but may hold the post of Chief Finance Officer if a 
qualified accountant.  

 
11.03 Functions of the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director of 

Corporate Governance) 
  
(a)  Maintaining the Constitution. The Monitoring Officer will maintain an 

up-to-date version of the Constitution and will ensure that it is widely 
available for consultation by members, staff and the public.  

 
(b)  Ensuring lawfulness and fairness of decision making. After 

consulting with the Head of Paid Service and Chief Finance Officer, the 
Monitoring Officer will report to the full Council or to the Cabinet in 
relation to an Executive function if he or she considers that any omission 
would give rise to unlawfulness or if any decision or omission has given 
rise to maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping 
the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been 
considered.  
 

(c) Contributing to corporate management. The Monitoring Officer will 
contribute to the corporate management of the Council 

  
(d)  Supporting the Standards Committee. The Monitoring Officer will 

contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of 
conduct through provision of support to the Standards Committee.  

 
(e)  Receiving reports. The Monitoring Officer will receive and act on 

reports made by the Standards Committee.  
 
(f)  Conducting investigations. The Monitoring Officer, or investigators 

appointed by him/her, will conduct investigations into matters referred by 
the Standards Committee or one of its sub-committees and make reports 
on recommendations in respect of them to the Standards Committee.  

 
(g)  Proper officer for access to information. The Democratic Services 

Manager shall ensure that Cabinet and other Executive decisions, 
together with the reasons for those decisions and relevant officer reports 
and background papers are made publicly available as soon as possible. 

Page 61



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 28 of 34 
 

The Monitoring Officer will advise and assist to ensure the proper 
performance of these functions. 

 
(h)  Advising whether Cabinet decisions are within the budget and 

policy framework. The Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer 
will advise whether decisions of the Cabinet are in accordance with the 
budget and policy framework.  

 
(i)  Providing advice. The Monitoring Officer will provide advice on the 

scope of powers and authority to take decisions, maladministration, 
financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy framework issues to 
all councillors. The Monitoring Officer will report on new and amended 
legislation to Council so that members can consider the effects on 
services and the possible need to amend the scheme of delegations.  
 

(j)  Restrictions on posts. The Monitoring Officer cannot be the Chief 
Finance Officer or the Head of Paid Service.  

 
11.04 Functions of the Chief Finance Officer  and Section 151 Officer 
[Director of Finance] 
 
(a)  Ensuring lawfulness and financial prudence of decision making. 

After consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the Monitoring Officer, 
the Chief Finance Officer will report to the full Council or to the Cabinet 
in relation to a Cabinet function and the Council's external auditor if he 
or she considers that any proposal, decision or course of action will 
involve incurring unlawful expenditure, or is unlawful and is likely to 
cause a loss of deficiency or if the Council is about to enter an item of 
account unlawfully.  

 
(b)  Administration of financial affairs. The Chief Finance Officer (Director 

of Finance)will have responsibility for the administration of the financial 
affairs of the Council.  
 

(c)  Contributing to corporate management. The Chief Finance 
Officer(Director of Finance) will contribute to the corporate management 
of the Council, in particular thorough the provision of professional 
financial advice.  
 

(d)  Providing advice. The Chief Finance Officer(Director of Finance) will 
provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take decisions, 
maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget and policy 
framework issues to all councillors and will support and advise 
councillors and officers in their respective roles.  
 

(e)  Give financial information. The Chief Finance Officer(Director of 
Finance) will provide financial information to the media, members of the 
public and the community.  

 

Page 62



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 29 of 34 
 

11.05 Duty to provide sufficient resources to the Monitoring Officer and 
the Chief Finance Officer  
 

The Council will provide the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
(Director  of Finance)with such officers, accommodation and other resources 
as are in their opinion sufficient to allow their duties to be performed.  
 
11.06 Conduct  
 
Officers will comply with the Officers' Code of Conduct and the Protocol on 
Officer/Member Relations set out in Part 5 of this Constitution.  
 
11.07 Employment  

 
The recruitment, selection and dismissal of officers will comply with the Officer 
Employment Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.  
 
  

Page 63



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 30 of 34 
 

Article 12 - Decision Making  
 
12.01 Responsibility for decision making  

 
The Council will issue and keep up to date a record of what part of the Council 
or individual has responsibility for particular types of decision or decisions 
relating to particular areas of functions. This record is set out in Part 3 of this 
Constitution or an Appendix to it.  
 
12.02 Principles of decision making  

 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following 
principles: 
 
(a) proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired 

outcome); 
 

(b) due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 
 

(c) respect for human rights in particular, giving consideration to such issues 
at an early stage in the process; 
 

(d) a presumption in favour of openness; and  
 

(e) clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

Furthermore, the Council will explain what options were considered and give 
reasons for the decision.  
 
12.03 Types of decision  
 
(a)  Decisions reserved to full Council. Decisions relating to the functions 

listed in Article 4 and at Part 3 Section B will be made by the full Council 
and not delegated. 
  

(b)  Decisions reserved to the Executive. Decisions relating to the functions 
listed in Part 3 Section C will be made by the Executive and not 
delegated. 

 
(c)  Key decisions. 

 
A key decision is an Executive decision which is likely:  
  
(i)  to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or 

the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
local authority's budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates; or  

(ii)  to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or 
working in an area comprising two or more wards in the area of 
the local authority. 

Page 64



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 31 of 34 
 

 
A decision taker may only make a key decision in accordance with the 
requirements of the Cabinet Procedure Rules set out in Part 4, the 
Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in Part 4 and the Protocol 
for Key Decisions set out in Part 5. 

  
12.04 Decision making by the full Council  

 
Subject to Article 4 the Council meeting will follow Procedure Rules set out in 
Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter. 
  
12.05. Decision making by the Executive  
 
Subject to Article 7 the Executive (the Leader, individual Cabinet members, the 
Cabinet, or a Committee of the Cabinet) will follow the Cabinet Procedures 
Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution when considering any matter.  
 
12.06 Decision making by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 
Subject to Article 6, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will follow the 
Overview and Scrutiny Procedures Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution 
when considering any matter.  
 
12.07 Decision making by the other Committees and Sub-Committees 

established by the Council  
 

Subject to Article 8, other Council Committees and Sub-Committees will follow 
those parts of the Procedures Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution as 
apply to them.  
 
12.08 Decision making by Officers  

 
Subject to Article 11, officers shall follow the scheme of delegation, as set out 
in Part 3 of this Constitution and any Appendix to it, when considering any 
matter.  
 
12.09 Decision making by Council bodies acting as tribunals 
  
The Council, a councillor or an officer acting as a tribunal or in a quasi-judicial 
manner or determining/considering (other than for the purposes of giving 
advice) the civil rights and obligations or the criminal responsibility of any 
person will follow a proper procedure which accords with the requirements of 
natural justice and the right to a fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights.  

Page 65



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 32 of 34 
 

Article 13 - Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters  
  
13.01 Financial management  

 
The management of the Council's financial affairs will be conducted in 
accordance with the Financial Regulations set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.  
 
13.02 Contracts  

 
Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contract Procedure 
Rules set out in Part 4 of this Constitution.  
 
13.03 Legal proceedings  

 
On the advice of the Assistant Director of Corporate GovernanceMonitoring 
Officer as appropriate, Officers are authorised to institute, defend or participate 
in any legal proceedings in any case where such action is necessary to give 
effect to decisions of the Council or in any case where the Assistant Director of 
Corporate GovernanceMonitoring Officer considers that such action is 
necessary to protect the Council's interests.  
 
13.04 Authentication of documents  

 
Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or proceedings on 
behalf of the Council, it will be signed by the Assistant Director of Corporate 
GovernanceMonitoring Officer or other person authorised by him/her, unless 
any enactment otherwise authorises or requires, or the Council has given 
requisite authority to some other person.  

 
Any contract shall comply with the Council’s Contract Standing Orders as 
outlined in Part 4 of this Constitution.  
 
13.05 Common Seal of the Council  

 
The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the custody of 
the Monitoring OfficerAssistant Director of Corporate Governance. A decision 
of the Council, or of any part of it, will be sufficient authority for sealing any 
document necessary to give effect to the decision. The Common Seal will be 
affixed to those documents which in the opinion of the Monitoring 
OfficerAssistant Director of Corporate Governance should be sealed or where 
required by the Contract Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. The 
affixing of the Common Seal will be attested by the Monitoring OfficerAssistant 
Director of Corporate Governance, Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, 
Assistant Head of Legal Services or any other person authorised by him/her 
either in relation to a specific document or to particular categories of documents.  

 

Page 66



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 33 of 34 
 

Article 14 - Review and Revision of the Constitution 
 
14.01 Duty to monitor and review the Constitution 
 
The Monitoring Officer will monitor and review the operation of the Constitution 
to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution are given full effect. 
 
14.02 Protocol for monitoring and review of Constitution by Monitoring 

Officer 
 
A key role for the Monitoring Officer is to be aware of the strengths and 
weaknesses of the Constitution adopted by the Council, and to make 
recommendations for ways in which it could be amended in order better to 
achieve the purposes set out in Article 1. In undertaking this task the Monitoring 
Officer may: 

 
(a)  Observe meetings of different parts of the member and officer 

structure; 
(b)  Undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions; 
(c)  Record and analyse issues raised with him/her by members, officers, the 

public and other relevant stakeholders; and 
(d)  Compare practices in this authority with those in other comparable 

authorities, or national examples of best practice. 
 
14.03 Changes to the Constitution 
 
(a)  Approval. Changes to the Constitution, including the Scheme of 

Members’ Allowances, will only be approved by the full Council after 
recommendation of the proposal by the Standards Committee and 
following advice from the Monitoring Officer save that authority is 
delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make any changes required as a 
result of legislative change. In addition, where in the reasonable opinion 
of the Monitoring Officer a proposed change is: 

  a) a minor variation; or 
  b) required in order to remove any inconsistency or ambiguity; or 

 c) required so as to give effect to any decision of the Council or 
one of its committees or sub-committees; or the Cabinet or one of 
its committees or sub-committees,  

the Monitoring Officer may make that change. The change will come into 
force immediately, but will be reported to full Council at the next available 
meeting. Other changes to the Constitution will take effect from the date 
of the decision unless a later date for implementation is specified.  

 
(b)  Change from a Leader and Cabinet form of Executive to alternative 

arrangements, or vice versa. The Council must take reasonable steps 
to consult with local electors and other interested persons in the area 
when drawing up proposals. If the proposals were to change the 
Executive Arrangements to an alternative form of governance 
arrangements, then a local referendum would be required.  

Page 67



PART TWO – ARTICLES OF THE CONSTITUTION  

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 11 June 2019 
 

Page 34 of 34 
 

Article 15 - Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the 
Constitution 
 
15.01 Suspension of the Constitution 
 
(a)  Limit to suspension. The Articles of this Constitution may not be 

suspended. The Rules specified below may be suspended by the full 
Council to the extent permitted within those Rules and the law. 

 
(b)  Procedure to suspend. A motion to suspend any Rule will not be moved 

without notice unless at least one half of the whole number of councillors 
are present. The extent and duration of suspension will be proportionate 
to the result to be achieved, taking account of the purposes of the 
Constitution set out in Article 1. 
 

15.02 Interpretation 
 
The ruling of the Mayor (or other person presiding in the Mayor’s absence) as 
to the construction or application of this Constitution or as to any proceedings 
of the Council shall not be challenged at any meeting of the Council. Such 
interpretation will have regard to the purposes of this Constitution contained in 
Article 1.  
 
15.03 Publication 
 
(a)  The Constitution is available on the Council’s website. The Chief 

Executive will give on request a printed copy of this Constitution to a 
member of the authority. 
 

(b)  The Chief Executive will ensure that copies are available for inspection 
at council offices, libraries and other appropriate locations, and can be 
purchased by members of the local press and the public on payment of 
a reasonable fee. The Chief Executive will ensure that the summary of 
the Constitution is made widely available within the area and is updated 
as necessary. 

Page 68



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 1 of 8 
 

 
 

Part Three, Section E 
Officer Scheme of Delegation 

 
Section 1        INTRODUCTION AND GROUND RULES 
 
1.  What is the Officer Scheme of Delegation?   
 
1.01 Part Three of the Constitution describes the overall areas of 

responsibility for the Council, the Executive and for Committees and 
Sub-Committees. However, to ensure that the Council runs efficiently, it 
is necessary for some decisions to be taken by officers. Certain types 
of decision must by law be delegated to an officer rather than being 
determined by Members.  These include the appointment and dismissal 
of officers below Director level, discharge of the duties of the Returning 
Officer in elections and the Proper Officer functions.  Other Council 
functions must by law be determined by Members, for example, setting 
the Council Tax and adopting the plans or strategies constituting the 
Council’s Policy Framework.  For the great majority of local authority 
functions, it is a matter of local choice for the Council whether they are 
exercised by Members or delegated to officers.  
 

1.02 This Section describes the functions, powers and duties delegated to 
the most senior officers of the Council within their areas of 
responsibility. All functions and decisions not reserved to Members - 
either the Executive or the Full Council or one of their Committees or 
Sub-Committees (and as listed in Part Three Sections B – D above) 
are delegated to officers.  
 

1.03 In understanding the Officer Scheme of Delegation it is important to 
recognise the respective roles of Members and officers. Members and 
officers are servants of the public and they are indispensable to one 
another, but their responsibilities are distinct. Members are responsible 
to the electorate and serve until their term of office expires. As elected 
Members, they are responsible for determining Council Policy and 
Strategy. Officers are employed by, and are responsible to, the Council 
and as such are responsible for implementing policy and delivering 
services. Their job is to give advice to members and the Council, and to 
carry out the Council's work under the direction and control of the 
Council, the Executive, their committees and the management of the 
Chief Executive and relevant Director. 
 

1.04 This scheme operates from the date approved by the full Council. 
 
 

Appendix 2 

Page 69



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 2 of 8 
 

 
2.  General Principles of the Officer Scheme of Delegation 
 
2.01 For the purposes of officer delegated powers, both within this part and 

any other part of the Constitution, the term “Director” shall include the 
following officers: 

 
• The Chief Executive 
• Members of the Corporate Board *  
• All Directors and Assistant Directors  
• The Chief Executive of Alexandra Palace & Park (as 

appropriate) 
 

For the purposes of officer delegated powers, the term “Corporate 
Board ” means1: 
 

• The Chief Executive 
• The Director for Environment and Neighbourhoods 
• The Director for Housing, Regeneration and Planning 
• The Director for Children’s Services 
• The Director for Adults and Health  
• The Director for Customers, Transformation and Resources 
• The Director of Finance 

 
For the purposes of officer delegated powers, the term “Statutory 
Officers2” means: 
 

• The S151 Chief Finance Officer (This role is held by  the 
Director of Finance) 

• The Monitoring Officer (This role is held by the Assistant Director 
of Corporate Governance) 

• The Director of Adult’s Services 
• The Director of Children’s Services 
• The Director of Public Health  

 
Any functions delegated to Directors shall be exercised by Directors in 
respect only of the specific services for which they are responsible. 
These officer delegated powers shall be exercised in accordance with 
the following general principles. 
 

2.02 Functions delegated to officers are to be exercised taking into account: 
 

• All other parts of the Constitution in particular the Financial Regulations 
and the Contract Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the Constitution   

• The Budget and Policy Framework 
 

1 
NB. The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service is a member of the Corporate Board  and is a 
Statutory Officer of the Council in law, however for the purposes of the Constitution, the Chief Executive 
and Head of Paid Service is extracted from these terms and addressed individually 

Page 70



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 3 of 8 
 

• The approved Budget 
• Any instructions given by the Chief Executive 
• Any advice given by the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (S151 officer) 

or the Monitoring Officer 
• All legal requirements and any statutory codes of conduct or statutory 

guidance  
• All codes, policies and protocols as may be approved by the Council or 

the Executive or one of their Committees or Sub-Committees 
• Any relevant decisions of the Council or the Executive or one of their 

Committees or Sub-Committees 
 
2.03 Any function delegated to an officer may also be exercised by any 

officer who has been so authorised by the officer to whom the function 
is delegated, or by the Chief Executive. Such authorisations shall be 
recorded and held by the officer making the authorisation.  Officers 
authorised under this provision to exercise a power delegated to 
another officer should be either fully or generally under the supervision 
and control of the authorising officer. This does not apply to functions 
delegated to the officers acting in the statutory capacity of the Council’s 
Chief Finance Officer (s151 officer) or the Monitoring Officer. These 
functions may only otherwise be exercised by the Assistant Director for 
Finance or Deputy Monitoring Officer as named in writing by the post 
holder. 
 

2.04 Functions delegated by reference to job titles or posts which have 
changed will continue in force and shall be exercised by officers whose 
duties include or most closely correspond to the duties of the post 
originally referred to.  
 

2.05 Where a Director’s post is vacant, or the officer is absent or otherwise 
unable to act, and no officer has been appointed in an ‘acting capacity’, 
any functions delegated may be exercised by the Director whose duties 
include or most closely correspond to the function in question;  save in 
relation to the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (s151 officer) or the 
Monitoring Officer where functions may only be exercised in 
accordance with arrangements that have been authorised in writing by 
the post holder. 

 
2.06 Any reference to legislation in this scheme shall include any act, 

statutory instrument or subordinate legislation by which it is applied, 
extended, amended, consolidated, repealed or replaced.  
 

2.07 It shall always be open to an officer to consult with the Committee or 
with appropriate Members on the exercise of delegated powers; or not 
to exercise delegated powers but to refer the matter to the Cabinet, the 
Leader, relevant Cabinet Member or to a Committee of the Council. 
 

2.08 In the event of a “catastrophic incident”, declared by the Secretary of 
State to be imminent or to have occurred, all Council officers are 

Page 71



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 4 of 8 
 

authorised to take any action in accordance with the instructions of the 
Chief Executive or any external Chief Executive appointed to co-
ordinate the actions of some or all London local authorities. 

 
3. Requirements to record and report on decisions taken under the 

Officer Scheme of Delegation 
 
3.01 This scheme includes the obligation on officers to keep Members 

properly informed of activity arising within the scope of these 
delegations and to ensure a proper record of such activity is kept and 
available to Members and the public in accordance with legislation. 
Therefore, each Director must ensure that there is a system in place 
within his/her area of responsibility which records any decisions made 
under delegated powers. Written statements of officers’ exercise of 
delegated powers must be completed and where appropriate published 
and made available for public inspection at the Civic Centre and on the 
Council’s website. 
 

3.02 Regular reports (at least quarterly) shall be presented to the Cabinet 
Meeting, in the case of executive functions, and to the Corporate 
Committee, in the case of non-executive functions, summarising all 
decisions taken under urgency provisions as provided for at paragraph 
5 below. These reports will be sent to the next full Council for noting. 
There should be no abuse of urgency provisions especially since this 
would undermine proper forward planning. 
 

3.03 Regular reports (monthly or as near as possible) shall be presented to 
the Cabinet Meeting, in the case of executive functions, and to the 
responsible Member body, in the case of non-executive functions, 
recording the number and type of all decisions taken under officers’ 
delegated powers. Decisions of particular significance shall be reported 
individually.  
 

3.04 In paragraph 3.03 a decision of “particular significance”, to be reported 
individually by officers, shall mean a matter not within the scope of a 
decision previously agreed at Member level which falls within one or 
both of the following: 

 
(a) It is a spending or saving of £100,000 or more, or 

 
(b) It is significant or sensitive for any other reason and the Director 

and Cabinet Member have agreed to report it. 
 
3.05 The Council may require an officer to consult a Cabinet Member before 

exercising the delegation in specific circumstances.  In this event the 
signed agreement of the Cabinet Member must be obtained.  If there is 
disagreement, the officer must report the matter to the Cabinet Meeting 
for decision. 
 

4.  General Limitations: 

Page 72



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 5 of 8 
 

 
4.01 This scheme does not delegate to officers: 

(a) Any matter reserved that is reserved to Members - either the 
Executive or the Full Council or one of their Committees or Sub-
Committees and as listed in Part Three Sections B – D above. 
This includes key decisions; the making, changing or departure 
from Council policy and the setting of fees and charges; 
 

(b) Any matter which by law may not be delegated to an officer 
 
4.02 Officers shall not be authorised by virtue of these provisions to incur 

any capital or revenue expenditure in excess of the estimates allocated 
to a function under the relevant head of expenditure, but subject to 
such modifications as may be made in accordance with the Financial 
Regulations at Part 4 Section I. 

5.  Urgent decisions and Officer Powers: 
 

5.01 Where action needs to be taken on any urgent matter between 
meetings of the Cabinet, or any Committee or Sub-Committee of the 
Cabinet or the Council and such action would not be authorised within 
these provisions, the following rules shall apply: 

(a) in the case of executive functions, the Leader may take any 
executive decision in place of, or between meetings of, the 
Cabinet, including decisions that have become urgent, in 
accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules at 
Part 4 Section D of this Constitution. The Leader may also 
allocate any executive decision whether urgent or not to the 
Cabinet Member having the relevant portfolio responsibilities, or 
to a Committee of the Cabinet. The Protocol for Decision-
Making in Part 5 shall be followed 
 

(b) in the case of non-executive functions, a report will be prepared 
so that the Director having operational responsibility can take 
the decision in consultation with the Chair of the Committee or 
Sub-Committee having the matter within its terms of reference. 
The Protocol for Decision-Making in Part 5 shall be followed.  

 
6.  Responsibility for maintaining and updating the Scheme of 

Delegation 
 
6.01 The delegations in this document are necessary for officers to perform 

their duties in order to discharge the Council's functions and 
responsibilities and to demonstrate if called upon to do so that they 
have the necessary authority to act.  It is essential therefore that the 
contents of this document are kept up to date.  

 

Page 73



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 6 of 8 
 

6.02 Each Director must ensure that there is a nominated officer in their 
Directorate who takes responsibility for considering changes the 
Scheme of Delegation.  This officer must ensure that changes to 
existing legislation, proposed new legislation affecting their service 
area and new operational or policy developments are discussed with 
the Monitoring Officer.  The Monitoring Officer will be responsible for 
preparing any necessary reports to full Council recommending 
amendments to the Scheme.   

 
6.03 In cases where there is an immediate or urgent need to amend the 

Scheme of Delegation with respect to any Non-executive  function 
before a report can be considered by full Council, amendments may be 
authorised by the Chief Executive, acting in consultation with the Chair 
of the Standards Committee.  Any such urgent amendments to the 
Scheme will only be effective for six months unless they are formally 
adopted as amendments to the Constitution by full Council before the 
expiry of that period.  

 
6.04 Amendments to the Scheme of Delegation with respect to any 

Executive function may be authorised at any time by the Leader or the 
Cabinet and will have immediate and continuing effect. Such 
amendments will be reported to the full Council but only for noting and 
inclusion within the Council’s Constitution. 

 
7.  Protocol for Officers Taking Decisions under Delegated Powers 
 
7.01 There is no prescribed form for officers taking delegated decisions. 

Different types of report or record appropriate to the circumstances 
may be used provided the essential details are recorded in writing in 
every case. These are: 
 
(a) the post title of the officer taking the decision, 
 
(b) the substantive facts, including what is being decided, 
 
(c) the reasons for the decision, 
 
(d) the expenditure authorised (if any), 
 
(e) the date the decision was taken. 

 
(f) details of any alternatives considered and rejected by the officer 

taking the decision, 
 
(g) details of any conflict of interest declared by any Cabinet 

Member who is consulted by the officer which relates to the 
decision, and 

 
(h) in respect of any officer’s declared conflict of interest, a note of 

dispensation granted by the Head of Paid Service. 

Page 74



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 7 of 8 
 

 
7.02 The officer taking the decision is responsible for ensuring that all 

relevant points are recorded which may include, but are not limited to, 
the following: 

 
(a) any financial implications (beyond stating the expenditure) 
 
(b) any legal implications 

 
(c) any environmental implications 
 
(d) any equalities implications 
 
(e) any relevant Council policies 
 
(f) any relevant national or regional guidance 

 
(g) any consultations undertaken and the views of consultees 

 
(h) any other implications for service delivery in the relevant 

service area 
 

(i) any implications for other Council services outside the service 
area 
 

(j) and any comments from other affected service areas 
 

(k) any staffing implications 
 

(l) any background documents relied upon 
 

(m) any information in the report or background documents that 
could or should be restricted from public disclosure as 
confidential or exempt information under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 
 

(n) any alternative options to the recommended decision  
 

(o) any consultation with Members (whether Cabinet Members, 
Chairs or Ward Members). 

 
7.03 Officers taking delegated decisions should always consider carefully 

whether there are any factors that would make it advisable to consult 
the relevant Cabinet Member(s) or Chair of Committee in advance, for 
example, the sensitive or controversial nature of the decision. 

 
7.04 The officer exercising delegated powers is responsible for ensuring that 

all decisions taken are properly recorded in accordance with the 
procedure for the relevant service area or function concerned. Each 

Page 75



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 1 Introduction 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

 Page 8 of 8 
 

Director will keep their own central record of all delegated decisions 
taken within their constituent services. 

 

Page 76



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Section 2 GENERAL DELEGATIONS TO DIRECTORS  
 
General Functions delegated to Directors in their service areas: 
 
General 
 
• To exercise any functions, powers and duties of the Council to secure the 

effective management of their service areas including the authorisation of 
any procedures or contracts within the framework of Financial Procedure 
Rules and Contract Procedure Rules, and taking and implementing 
decisions to maintain the operational effectiveness of their service areas 
where these fall within a policy decision made by the Council or Cabinet  

• To implement and develop initiatives within the strategic policy framework 
and other Council plans and policy documents 

• To carry out, or authorise the carrying out, of the functions of the proper 
officer of the Council in any legislation relating to those areas of 
responsibility assigned to Directors 

• To exercise the general power of competence under the Localism Act 
2011 subject to advice from Legal Services on each proposed exercise of 
these powers  

• The power to place the services of any Council officers at the disposal of 
any person acting as the returning officer at any Greater London Authority 
election for an electoral area situated wholly or partly in the Borough 

 
Incidental powers 
 
• In addition to any of their general and/or specific delegated functions and 

powers set out below, to enter into arrangements or do anything else 
which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the 
discharge of such delegated functions 

 
Service Performance  
 
• To make arrangements to secure value for money in respect of their 

service areas, to secure continuous improvement in the way functions are 
exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness, and to maximise economic, environmental and social value 

• To arrange consultation with tax payers, non-domestic rate-payers, 
service users and other local representatives about fulfilment of the best 
value duties and to involve representatives of local persons in the 
exercise of Council functions 

• To meet business critical and key performance indicator targets 
• To enter into any agreement with any other public body for the supply of 

goods and services subject to this being in accordance with the Council’s 
Budget & Policy Framework, the Financial Regulations and the Contract 
Standing Orders 

Appendix 3 
Page 77



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

• To make arrangements for co-ordinating the activities of the Council and 
those of any charity established for purposes similar or complementary to 
services provided by the Council in the interests of persons who may 
benefit from those services or from the charity and to disclose to any such 
charity any information obtained in connection with the services provided 
by the Council 

 
Legal  
 
• To authorise, institute, prosecute, defend, compromise, or adjourn any 

form of legal proceedings or enforcement functions or statutory procedure 
and to make or defend any appeal in criminal or civil proceedings where 
such action is desirable to protect the Council’s interests, subject to advice 
from Legal Services and the agreement of the Monitoring OfficerAssistant 
Director of Corporate Governance as appropriate 

• Subject to the agreement of the Monitoring OfficerAssistant Director of 
Corporate Governance, to authorise officers to prosecute or defend or to 
appear on the Council’s behalf in proceedings before any Court or Tribunal  

• To prepare, issue and serve any statutory notice, demand, certificate, 
order, or requisition for information in respect of functions in their area, 
including the authentication of such documents save that the 
authentication of documents necessary for any legal procedure or 
proceedings is reserved to the Monitoring Officer Assistant Director of 
Corporate Governance in accordance with Article 1413.04 

• To authorise officers to enter and/or inspect any land or premises in 
respect of which the Council has a statutory power or duty to enter or 
inspect including the obtaining and enforcement of a search warrant 

• To authorise any officer exercising a power to enter and/or seize items 
found on premises to exercise the powers of seizure, to give the required 
notice and to perform the duties to return certain items seized and to 
secure certain items seized   

• To apply, or to authorise other officers to apply, to a Court for a warrant to 
enter any land or premises, in exercise of his/her responsibilities;  

• To authorise the institution of any process or proceedings for administering 
or enforcing the functions of the Council 

• To certify that any document forms part of the records of the Council for 
the purpose of admitting that document as evidence in civil proceedings 

• To authorise the recovery by legal proceedings of any sum to which the 
Council is entitled 

• To take the action necessary to comply with any Court Order made 
against the Council 

• To appoint officers as authorised officers for any statutory purpose 
• To accept, hold and administer any property on trust (in consultation with 

the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring OfficerAssistant Director of 
Corporate Governance)    

Page 78



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

• To supply photocopies of documents to the general public subject to 
making such charges as may be agreed in an approved scheme, subject 
to the provisions of the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 
 

Personnel Matters: 
 
Exercising all Human Resources functions in accordance with agreed 
procedures and policies and subject to the agreement of the Assistant 
Director for Human Resources as required, including: 
  
• Taking all decisions relating to changes to the establishment; save in 

relation to the Strategic Leadership Team and Statutory Officers which is 
delegated to the Chief Executive. All such changes are to be contained 
within existing budgets and in accordance with agreed procedures and 
legislative requirements 

• Power to designate posts as casual or essential car users in accordance 
with agreed procedures 

• Power to defray expenses properly incurred by an officer of the Council 
• Extension of sickness pay (half and full pay) or extension beyond the 

national, provincial or local agreements 
• Approval of extension of special leave with pay 
• Extensions of accident pay beyond the national, provincial or local 

agreements 
• Grant of honoraria and where relevant ex-gratia payments to employees 
• Approval to changes to grades on various scales/conditions for all 

employee groups subject to the agreement of the Assistant Director for 
Human Resources and save in relation to Directors which is reserved to 
the Staffing and Remuneration Committee 

• Re-designation of posts subject to normal consultative procedures 
• Decisions not to reclaim financial assistance granted under the Post-Entry 

Training Scheme 
• To consider requests from employees to engage in any other regular 

employment for which payment is received  
• Decisions not to reclaim maternity pay 
• Deletion of vacant and creation of new posts 
• Appointments to posts in accordance with agreed procedures and pay 

scales, save in relation to Directors which is reserved to the Staffing and 
Remuneration Committee; 

• Power to authorise recruitment and retention terms for individual posts 
save in relation to Directors which is reserved to the Staffing and 
Remuneration Committee 

• Disciplinary/capability action, save in relation to the Strategic Leadership 
Team and Statutory Officers which is delegated to the Chief Executive, in 
accordance with agreed procedures. The Chief Executive shall act in 
accordance with Part 4 Section K of the Constitution.  

• Dismissals of officers, save in relation to Directors which is reserved to the 
Staffing and Remuneration Committee. The power to approve the terms of 

Page 79



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

release of staff aged 55 or over and made redundant or retired early with a 
claim on the pension scheme is delegated to the Chief Finance Officer, 
save in relation to Directors which is reserved to the Staffing and 
Remuneration Committee 

• Approval of settlements for individual post holders, at termination of 
employment or in legal proceedings including those reached by settlement 
agreement,  subject to the approval of the Assistant Director for Human 
Resources and save in relation to Directors which is reserved to the 
Staffing and Remuneration Committee 

• Exercising of discretions in accordance with Council policy pursuant to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 

• Exercising of discretions in accordance with Council policy pursuant to the 
Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 

• Approval of payment of allowances to employees  
• Approval of more than 5 days carry-over of annual leave to the following 

leave year 
 

Administrative Matters  
 
• Power to deal with requests for access to Council premises by the media 
• Power to waive charges where justified in exceptional circumstances and 

where this is legally permissible 
 
Finance 
 
Officers are referred to the Financial Regulations at Part Four Section I of the 
Constitution 
 
Contracts  
 
Officers are referred to the Contract Procedure Rules at Part Four Section J of 
the Constitution 
 
Property Matters 
 
• Any decision concerning the management or use of land held for the 

operational requirements of the officers of a service area may be taken by 
the relevant Director, subject to the following provisions  

• Powers to take any action or sign any document under the Land 
Registration Rules, including the release of mortgages or charges; and 
powers to give any undertaking under the Greater London Council 
(General Powers) Act 1974 are reserved to the Monitoring 
Officer.Assistant Director of Corporate Governance 

• Subject to the agreement of the Assistant Director for Corporate Property 
and Major Projects, the power to acquire or dispose of any land or 
property with a capital value below £250,000 except by use of compulsory 
powers or in advance of identified requirements. The power to acquire or 
dispose of any land or property with a capital value equalling or exceeding 

Page 80



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

£250,000 but less than £500,000 except by use of compulsory powers or 
in advance of identified requirements is reserved to the Director of 
Regeneration, Planning and Development 

• Subject to the agreement of the Assistant Director for Corporate Property 
and Major Projects, the power to take or grant a lease or licence of any 
land or property for any period where the rent is less than £100,000 per 
annum.  The power to take a lease or licence of any land or property for 
any period where the rent equals or exceeds £100,000 per annum but is 
less than £500,000 is reserved to the Director of Regeneration, Planning 
and Development 

• Subject to the agreement of the Assistant Director for Corporate Property 
and Major Projects, the power to settle compensation for the loss of 
interests in land up to a maximum of £250,000 per interest where in the 
approved capital programme. 

• The power to survey land which the Council proposes to acquire 
compulsorily  

• The power to serve on any person occupying, having an interest in, or 
managing any land a notice requiring them to furnish the Council with 
information regarding the nature of their interest in the land and the name 
and address of others occupying, managing or having an interest in the 
land 

 
Emergencies (e.g. flooding, power failure etc) 

 
• Where an emergency or disaster involving destruction of or danger to life 

or property occurs or is imminent or there is reasonable ground for 
apprehending such an emergency or disaster, and L.A Gold is of the 
opinion that it is likely to affect the whole or part of the Council’s area or 
all or some of its inhabitants, all Directors may: 

a) incur such expenditure as is considered necessary in taking action 
(either by the Council itself or jointly with any other person or body and 
either in their area or elsewhere in or outside the United Kingdom) 
which is calculated to avert, alleviate or eradicate in the Borough or 
among its inhabitants the effects or potential effects of the event; and 

b) make grants or loans to other persons or bodies in respect of any such 
action taken by those persons or bodies, subject to ratification where 
necessary, as soon as possible. 

• This power is to be exercised by Directors in accordance with Article 
11.07 of the Constitution.  

 
Safeguarding 

 
• Duty to ensure that a person who is disqualified from working with 

children is not offered work in a regulated activity and that any such 
person who is so employed is removed from such work 

Page 81



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

• In accordance with the provisions of the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups 
Act 2006, to exercise  the duty and the power to make referrals to the 
Disclosure and Barring Service to refer any person who has:  

(a) Harmed or poses a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult; 
(b) Satisfied the harm test; or  
(c) Received a caution or conviction for a relevant offence 

 
Equalities and Public Health 

 
• To have due regard, when carrying out any of the Council's functions, to 

the Council’s Equal Opportunities Policy and  the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation and to promote equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations 

• To have regard, when carrying out any of the Council's functions, to the 
joint strategic needs assessment and Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
prepared by the Council and its health partners and which is relevant to 
the exercise of the functions 

• Duty to make provision for disabled persons with needs who are members 
of the public or Council employees in Council premises including means 
of access, parking facilities  sanitary conveniences and appropriate 
signage 
 

Energy and Climate Change  
 

• To have regard, when carrying out any of the Council's functions, to the 
most recent energy measures report from central government  
 

Health and Safety 
 

• To ensure and promote the health, safety and welfare at work of all 
employees and visitors to premises under their control 

 
Access to Information 

 
• To comply with the duties and powers imposed by Part 4 Section D of the 

Constitution 
 
Responding to consultations and proposals  
 
• To respond to consultations and to make comments and representations 

on matters notified to the Council by third parties including (but not limited 
to) Government Departments, statutory undertakers, local authorities and 
the Mayor of London, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member 

 
Submission of grant funding bids  
 
• To submit bids for grant funding and/or other financial assistance to 

Government departments and other organisations and bodies for projects 

Page 82



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 2 General Delegations to 
Directors 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
16 July 2019 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

and initiatives consistent with Council policies, following consultation with 
the relevant Cabinet Member, and to enter into any such agreements and 
arrangements as necessary to secure such funding, in accordance with 
the  Contract Standing Orders 

 
Complaints  
 
• To take action regarding complaints received  

• To settle any Ombudsman / Complaint Cases: 
(i) cases of alleged maladministration where there has not been a 

finding of maladministration by the Ombudsman 
(ii) complaints that have been brought against the Council under 

any of its internal complaints procedures in conjunction with the 
Monitoring Officer/Assistant Director of Corporate Governance  

 
• To approve compensation payments to remedy complaints in accordance 

with the Corporate Complaints Procedure and Financial Regulations 
 

 

Page 83



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

Section 3 DELEGATIONS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 
STATUTORY OFFICERS  

 
Introduction 
 
The Council is required to designate a number of officers to discharge statutory 
functions. The legal provisions and the officer designated by the Council to 
discharge each function are listed in the table below. Further detail about the 
responsibilities of the Chief Executive and each Statutory Officer then follows. 
 
Legislation Statutory Power the 

Council must designate 
to an officer 

Officer Designated as 
the Statutory Officer 

 S4 Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 

Designate one of their 
officers as the Head of 
Paid Service 

Chief Executive 

S151 Local 
Government Act 1972 

Appoint an officer 
responsible for the 
administration of the 
authority’s financial affairs 

Director of Finance  

S5 Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 

Designate one of their 
officers as the Monitoring 
Officer 

Assistant Director of 
Corporate 
GovernanceMonitoring 
Officer 

S36 Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 

Qualified person in 
relation to s36 of the Act. 

Assistant Director of 
Corporate 
GovernanceMonitoring 
Officer 

S6 Local Authority 
Social Services Act 
1970 

To appoint an officer 
known as the Director of 
Social Services 

Director of Adults and 
Health 

S18 Children Act 
2004 

To appoint an officer to 
carry out the functions 
listed under s18(2) of the 
Act (education functions; 
functions conferred on the 
authority under ss 10-12 
and 17 of the 2004 Act, 
social services functions 
relating to children, 
functions under s75 of the 
Children Act 1989 and the 
National Health Service 
Act 2006 and those 
conferred on the authority 
under Part 1 of the 
Childcare Act 2006 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

S73 National Health 
Service Act 2006 

To appoint a Director of 
Public Health 

Director of Public 
Health 

Appendix 4 
Page 84



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

S72 Weights and 
Measures Act 1985 

To appoint a chief 
Inspector of Weights and 
Measures 

Senior Trading 
Standards Officer (or 
other suitably qualified 
Trading Standards 
Officer in the absence 
of a STSO in post) 

S9FB Local 
Government Act 2000 

To designate an officer as 
the Scrutiny Officer 

Director for Customers 
Transformation and 
Resources 

 
Functions delegated to the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive)  
 

1. To act as the Council’s statutory Head of Paid Service pursuant to 
section 4 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and carry out the 
responsibilities assigned to the Head of Paid Service under the Council’s 
Constitution generally 
 

2. Where he or she considers it appropriate to do so, to prepare a report 
to the authority setting out their proposals as to:  
 
(a) the manner in which the discharge by the authority of their different 

functions is co-ordinated; 
 

(b) the number and grades of staff required by the authority for the 
discharge of their functions; 

 
(c) the organisation of the authority’s staff; 

 
(d) the appointment and proper management of the authority’s staff. 
 

3. To be responsible for and take action in relation to Corporate strategy, 
policy initiatives and integrated planning and service delivery. 
 

4. The corporate management of the Council and, specifically: 
 

(a) Advice to the Council on the Policy Framework. 
 

(b) Preparation of, and consultation on, the draft of the Forward Plan on 
a monthly basis. 

 
(c) The responsibility for the discharge of the Council’s functions in 

implementation of statutory and non-statutory plans including the 
modernisation, collation, indexation and publication of policies and 
practices of the Council within the evolving Policy Framework as the 
Council and the Cabinet shall determine. 

 
5. As required to exercise any function delegated to any other officer of the 

Council, with the exception of those functions delegated exclusively to 
the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (s151 officer) or the Monitoring 

Page 85



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

Officer. Further, in the event of any dispute or doubt as to the delegated 
powers of any other Director, the Chief Executive shall have the authority 
to determine which Director is to exercise that power.  

 
6. To provide the ‘certificate of opinion’ for an employee on SCP44 or 

above making application to the Standards Committee for exemption of 
his/her post from political restriction under section 3 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 (opinion as to whether the duties of 
the post involve regularly giving advice to members or speaking to 
journalists/broadcasters). 
 

7. The authority to institute, defend or settle any legal proceedings or 
arbitration where urgent action is needed to protect the interests of the 
Council. 

 
8. The power to determine that an “emergency” has occurred, namely, an 

event or situation which threatens serious damage to human welfare or 
to the environment in the Borough or war or terrorism which threatens 
serious damage to the security of the United Kingdom. 

 
9. The power to incur expenditure and take any necessary action within 

local authority statutory functions, including jointly with other authorities, 
in the event of an emergency. 

 
10. To nominate other senior officers of the Council, whether orally or in 

writing, to take administrative decisions in the event of an emergency. 
 
11. In the event that the Chief Executive is absent or unable to act for any 

reason, the powers in paragraphs 8, 9 & 10 above may be exercised by 
any other Chief Officer who is available to act. 
 

12. The powers listed above relating to emergencies are granted subject to 
the provisions of Article 11.07 of this Constitution which set out the 
London Councils Arrangements for Co-ordinating the Response 
Emergencies. 

 
13. In the event that all members of the Cabinet are removed from office 

under Article 7, to exercise all Cabinet functions in consultation with the 
Mayor until a new Cabinet has been appointed. 

 
14. To discharge the functions of Electoral Registration Officer, electoral 

Returning Officer in local elections and Acting Returning Officer in 
parliamentary elections.  

 
15. Taking all decisions relating to changes to the establishment for all staff 

including the Corporate Board and Statutory Officers, such changes to 
be contained within existing budgets and in accordance with agreed 
procedures and legislative requirements. 

 

Page 86



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

16. To take disciplinary action, not including dismissal, against any members 
of the Strategic Leadership Team or any Statutory Officer. In the case of 
the Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer to act in accordance 
with Part 4 Section K of the Constitution and agreed procedures. 

 
Functions delegated to the S151 Chief Finance Officer (Director of 
Finance) 
 

1. To act as the Council’s statutory Chief Finance Officer pursuant to 
section 114A Local Government Finance Act 1988 and carry out the 
responsibilities assigned to the Chief Finance Officer under the Council’s 
Financial Regulations and under the Constitution generally, including 
carrying out all Treasury Management activities 

 
2. To make arrangements for the proper administration of the Council’s 

financial affairs in accordance with section 151 Local Government Act 
1972 

 
3. To contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in particular 

thorough the provision of professional financial advice 
 

4. To approve the detailed format of the financial plan and the revenue 
budget prior to approval by the Council  

 
5. To approve the annual calculation of the Council’s Council Tax 

requirement in accordance with section 31A Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 

 
6. To report annually to Council on the robustness of the budget and 

adequacy of reserves as required by section 25 Local Government Act 
2003 

 
7. To provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take 

decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget 
and policy framework issues to Council officers and members 

 
8. To report to members, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, if 

there is or there is likely to be unlawful expenditure or an unbalanced 
budget as required by sections 111-116 Local Government Finance Act 
1988 
 

9. To establish and maintain the general fund and collection fund of the 
authority in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government 
Act 1988 

 
10. To manage the Capital Programme flexibly and to make adjustments to 

the phasing of approved projects within the limits of available capital 
resources 

 

Page 87



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

11. To approve the draft Council’s Accounts and Accounting Policies and 
the draft Pension Fund Accounts by 30 June each year in accordance 
with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 

 
12. To exercise all responsibilities as Pension Fund Administrator for the 

LGPS not reserved to the Pensions Committee  
 
13. To approve the terms of release of staff aged 55 or over and made 

redundant or retired early with a claim on the pension scheme, in 
accordance with agreed procedures, save in relation to Directors which 
is reserved to the Staffing and Remuneration Committee 

 
14. To exercise the functions of the duly authorised representative of the 

Council as the corporate member of Alexandra Palace Trading Limited 
 

15. To provide financial information to the media, members of the public and 
the community 

 
Functions delegated to the Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director of 
Corporate Governance) 
 

1. To act as the Council’s statutory Monitoring Officer pursuant to section 
5 and 5A Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and carry out the 
responsibilities assigned to the Monitoring Officer under the Council’s 
Constitution generally 

 
2. To ensure that the Council, its officers and its elected members maintain 

the highest standard of conduct  
 

3. To contribute to the corporate management of the Council, in particular 
thorough the provision of professional legal advice 

 
4. To establish and maintain the Members’ Code of Conduct, dealing with 

the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted members of the 
authority when they are acting in that capacity 

 
5. To establish and maintain a register of interests of members and co-

opted members of the authority in accordance with the provisions of the 
Localism Act 2011 

 
6. To contribute to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of 

conduct through provision of support to the Standards Committee 
 
7. To receive and act on reports made by the Standards Committee 

 
8. To consider complaints against members referred to him including 

conducting investigations into matters as appropriate and the making of 
reports or recommendations in respect of them to the Standards 
Committee  

Page 88



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 
9. To provide advice on the scope of powers and authority to take 

decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, probity and budget 
and policy framework issues to Council officers and members 

 
10. To report to members on any actual or potential breaches of the law or 

maladministration as required by section 5 Local Government Housing 
Act 1989 

 
11. To advise whether decisions of the Cabinet are in accordance with the 

budget and policy framework 
 
12. To be responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Council’s 

Constitution 
 

13. To advise and assist the Democratic Services Manager with the proper 
performance of the Access to Information requirements 
 

14. To fulfil the requirements of the ‘qualified person’ in relation to section 
36 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

 
Functions delegated to the Director of Children’s Services 
 

1. To act as the Council’s statutory Director of Children’s Services  
 
2. To carry out all functions as set out in s18(2) of the Children Act 2004 

including: 
 

(a) All education and children’s social care functions conferred on or 
exercisable by the Council 

 
(b) Making arrangements to promote co-operation between the 

authority and partners to improve the well-being of children 
 
(c) Making arrangements for ensuring that functions are discharged 

having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children 

 
(d) The establishment of a Local Safeguarding Children Board 
 
(e) The preparation and publication of a Children and Young People’s 

Plan 
 
(f) Improving preventative services and delivering earlier intervention  
 
(g) Any functions exercisable by the authority under s75 the National 

Health Service Act 2006 on behalf of an NHS body and any functions 
exercised pursuant to an arrangement made under s10 of the 

Page 89



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Children Act 2004 to include making arrangements for the 
management of services provided 

 
3. To provide strategic management and direction for Children’s Services 

across the Council  
 
4. To secure that there are sufficient youth justice services available in the 

Borough 
 
5. To appoint an interim executive board to a school which is eligible for 

intervention subject to the agreement of the Secretary of State 
 
6. Education services will be led by the Assistant Director of Schools and 

Learning who is responsible for education services functions on behalf 
of the Council. Commissioning within Children’s Services will be led by 
the Assistant Director of Commissioning who is responsible for the 
commissioning of children’s and adult social care functions on behalf of 
the Council. The Accountability Protocol for the Director of Children’s 
Services sets out the arrangements in place to enable the Director of 
Children’s Services to meet all statutory responsibilities and ensure the 
effective integration of all services for children and young people in the 
borough  
 

7. Commissioning in common with the Director of Adult Social Services to 
meet relevant care needs in the borough. 

 
Functions delegated to the Director of Adults and Health Services 
 

1. To act as the Council’s statutory Director of Adult’s Social Services in 
accordance with s 6 Local Authority Social Services Act 1970  

 
2. To be accountable for the delivery of local authority social services 

functions as set out in Schedule 1 Local Authority Social Services Act 
1970 in respect of adults and other than those which the Director of 
Children’s Services is statutorily responsible, including: 

 
(a) Accountability for assessing local needs and ensuring availability 

and delivery of a full range of adult social services 
 
(b) Responsibility for assessing, planning and commissioning adult 

social care and wellbeing services to meet the needs of all adults 
with social care needs in the borough 

 
(c) Making arrangements for ensuring that functions are discharged 

having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
vulnerable adults 

 
(d) Professional leadership including workforce planning 
 

Page 90



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

(e) Leading the implementation of standards 
 
(f) Managing cultural change 
 
(g) Promoting local access and ownership and drive partnership 

working 
 
(h) Delivering an integrated, whole system approach to supporting 

communities 
 
(i) Promoting social inclusion and well being 
 
(j) Improving preventative services and delivering earlier intervention  
 
(k) Any functions exercisable by the authority under S75 National Health 

Service Act 2006 on behalf of an NHS body to include making 
arrangements for any services provided 

 
(l) Commissioning in common with the Director of Children’s Services 

to meet relevant care needs in the borough 
 

3. To provide strategic management and direction for Adult’s Services 
across the Council  

 
Functions delegated to the Director of Public Health 

 
1. All functions of the statutory Director of Public Health to take steps to 

improve health in accordance with section 73A and 73B National Health 
Services Act 2006 including: 

 
(a) the responsibility for mandated public health functions of the local 

authority 
 
(b) planning for and responding to emergencies that present a risk to 

public health 
 
(c) the cooperation of the authority with the police, probation service and 

prisons service to assess the risk posed by sexual and violent 
offenders 

 
(d) to give views on licensing applications and on the statement of 

licensing policy in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 
 
(e) the provision of healthy start vitamins, oral health promotion 

programmes and oral health surveys 
 
(f) to prepare and publish an annual report on the health of people in 

the area 
 

Page 91



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

2. To provide leadership, expertise and advice on all aspects of the Public 
Health Service including advice on outbreaks of disease and emergency 
preparedness 

 
3. To promote health and wellbeing to reduce health inequalities 
 
4. Preparation of the joint strategic needs assessments and joint Health 

Wellbeing Strategy 
 
5. To provide the public with advice on health matters  
 
6. To promote action across the ‘life course’, working together with local 

authority colleagues such as the Director of Children and Young 
People’s Services, the Director of Adults and Housing Services and with 
NHS colleagues 

 
7. To work though local resilience fora to ensure effective and tested plans 

are in place for the wider health sector to protect the local population 
from risks to public health 
 

8. To work with local criminal justice partners and police and crime 
commissioners to promote safer communities 
 

9. To work with wider civil society to engage local partners in fostering 
improved health and wellbeing 

 
10. To play a full part in the Council’s action to meet the needs of 

vulnerable children, for example by linking effectively with the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board  

 
11. To contribute to and influence the work of NHS commissioners, ensuring 

a ‘whole system’ approach across the public sector 
 
12. To have regard to the NHS Constitution in exercising public health 

functions  
 
Functions delegated to the Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures 
(Senior Trading Standards Officer) 
 
1. To be responsible to the local weights and measures authority for the 

custody and maintenance of the local standards, working standards 
and testing and stamping equipment provided for the area for which he 
was appointed and generally for the operation of the arrangements 
made to give effect in that area to the purposes of this Act and the 
packaged goods regulations.  

 
 
Functions delegated to the Statutory Scrutiny Officer (Director for 
Customers, Transformation and Resources) 

Page 92



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
Section E – Scheme of Delegation – Section 3 Delegations to the Chief 
Executive and Statutory Officers 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated 16 July 2019 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

1.  To promote the role of the authority's overview and scrutiny committee 
or committees, 

2. To provide support to the authority's overview and scrutiny committee 
or committees and the members of that committee or those 
committees, 

3. To provide support and guidance to— 
 
(i) members of the authority, 
 
(ii) members of the executive of the authority, and 
 
(iii) officers of the authority, 
 
in relation to the functions of the authority's overview and scrutiny 
committee or committees. 

Page 93



PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
Section K– Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
 last updated xxxxxx 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Part Four, Section K 
Officer Employment 

Procedure Rules 
 
1. Recruitment and Appointment 
 
(a) Declarations 
 

(i) The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for 
appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they are the parent, 
grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted child, grandchild, brother, 
sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an existing councillor, the Mayor 
or officer of the Council; or of the partner of such persons. 

 
(ii) Any candidate who fails to disclose such a relationship will be 

disqualified from appointment. The content of this paragraph will be 
included in any recruitment information. 

 
(iii) No candidate so related to a councillor, the Mayor or an officer will be 

appointed without the authority of the Assistant Director for Human 
Resources or an officer nominated by him/her. 

 
(iv) Every Member and senior officer of the authority who knows of a 

relationship to a candidate for appointment must report the details to the 
Assistant Director for Human Resources. 

 
(b) Seeking support for appointment. 
 

(i) The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly seeks 
the support of any councillor or the Mayor for any appointment with the 
Council. The content of this paragraph will be included in any recruitment 
information. 

 
(ii) No councillor or the Mayor will seek support for any person for any 

appointment with the Council. This rule does not prevent a Member from 
offering or providing a written reference about a candidate but the 
Member shall not take part in the appointment process involving that 
candidate.  

 
  

Appendix 5 

Page 94



PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
Section K– Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
 last updated xxxxxx 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 
2. Recruitment of Head of Paid Service, and Directors* and Statutory 

Officers* 
 

Where the Council proposes to appoint a Head of Paid Service, or a Director or 
a Statutory Officer and it is not proposed that the appointment be made 
exclusively from among their existing officers, the Council will: 
 

(a) draw up a statement specifying: 
 

(i) the duties of the officer concerned; and 
(ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be appointed; 

 
(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to 

bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it; and 
 
(c) make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (1) to 

be sent to any person on request. 
 
(d) all applicants for the post shall be interviewed, or a short list of the more suitable 

applicants shall be drawn up and those applicants shall be interviewed.  
 
3. Appointment and dismissal of Head of Paid Service, dismissal of Chief 

Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer  
 
(a) The Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid Service following 

the recommendation of such an appointment by the Staffing and Remuneration 
Committee.  
 

(b) The Council may only make or approve the appointment of the Head of Paid 
Service where: 

 
(i) no objection has been made by any member of the Cabinet, or 
(ii) if any objection is made, the Staffing and Remuneration Committee has 

declared itself satisfied that the objection is not material or well-founded 
 
(c) The procedures in (a) and (b) above will apply to the dismissal of the Head of 

Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
*the terms Director and Statutory Officer haves the meaning given at Part 3 
Section E Section1; 2.01 of this Constitution 

 
 

Page 95



PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
Section K– Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
 last updated xxxxxx 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
 
4. Appointment of Directors  
 
(a) The Staffing and Remuneration Committee will appoint Directors. 
 
(b) The procedures in (a) above will not apply to the appointment, dismissal or 

discipline of the Chief Executive of the Alexandra Palace and Park charity. 
Instead, the Chief Executive acting in his/her charity capacity will take the 
decisions to appoint, dismiss or discipline that Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Alexandra Palace and Park Board or its appointed Panel. 

 
(c) An offer of employment as a Director shall only be made where: 
 
 (i)   no objection has been made by any Cabinet Member, or 

(ii)  if any objection is made, the Staffing and Remuneration Committee or 
the Chief Executive is satisfied that the objection is not material or well 
founded. 

 
(d) The procedures in (a) and (c) above will apply to the dismissal of Directors 

except that (b) and (c) will apply to the dismissal of the Chief Executive of the 
Alexandra Palace and Park charity.  

 
5. Member Training 
 

All Members taking part in appointments or disciplinary proceedings shall 
undertake appropriate training provided by the Assistant Director for Human 
Resources in consultation with the Assistant Director of Corporate 
GovernanceMonitoring Officer.   

 
6. Other appointments 
 
(a) Appointment of all other officers (other than assistants to political groups) will 

be made by the Head of Paid Service or his/her nominee. 
 

(b) Assistants to political groups. Appointment of an assistant to a political group 
shall be made in accordance with the wishes of that political group. 

 
 
7. Disciplinary action 
 
(a) Suspension. The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 

Officer may be suspended whilst an investigation takes place into alleged 
misconduct. That suspension will be on full pay and last no longer than two 
months. 
 

(b) Independent Panel.  No other disciplinary action may be taken in respect of any 
of those officers until the Authority has invited relevant independent persons to 

Page 96



PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE 
Section K– Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
 last updated xxxxxx 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

form an Independent Panel to advise on such matters as set out in the Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders)(England) Regulations 2001.  
 

(c) Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any officer 
below Director except where such involvement is necessary for any 
investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct, though the Council’s 
disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as adopted from time to time 
may allow a right of appeal to Members in respect of disciplinary action. 

 
8. Dismissal 
 
(a) Independent Panel. In accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities 

(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001, before the taking of a vote at 
the relevant meeting on whether to approve or not a dismissal of the Head of 
Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer, the Council must take 
into account, in particular: 

 
(i) any advice, views or recommendations of the Independent Panel; 
(ii) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal; and 
(iii) any representations from the relevant officer. 

 
(b) Councillors will not be involved in the dismissal of any officer below Director 

except where such involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into 
alleged misconduct, though the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related 
procedures, as adopted from time to time may allow a right of appeal to 
Members in respect of dismissals. 

 
9. Definitions 
 
In these Rules: 
 
• "Director " has the meaning given at Part 3 Section E Section 1; 2.01 of this 

Constitution and shall include the following officers: 
 Members of the Corporate Board 
 All Directors and Assistant Directors 
 The Chief Executive of Alexandra Palace & Park(as appropriate) 

 
“Corporate Board” means: 
 

 The Director for Environment and Neighbourhoods 
 The Director for Housing, Regeneration and Planning 
 The Director for Children’s Services 
 The Director for Adults and Health 
 The Director for Customers, Transformation and Resources 
 The Director for Finance 

Page 97



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 1 of 8 

Part Three, Section C 
Responsibility for functions: 

The Executive: the Leader, the 
Cabinet & Cabinet Bodies 

 
SECTION 1 – THE EXECUTIVE’S ROLE AND FUNCTIONS  
 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 All functions of the Council which are not the responsibility of the Full 

Council or one of its Committees or an officer, in law or where the law 
gives a choice, under this Constitution (see Part 3 Section D), are the 
responsibility of the Executive.  
 

1.2 The Executive is the part of the Council which is responsible for most 
day-to-day decisions. The Executive is the collective term for the Leader, 
individual Cabinet Members, the Cabinet or a Committee of the Cabinet. 
The Leader selects the Executive members (Cabinet Members) and 
these make up the Cabinet. The Executive might also establish 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  

 
1.3 The Cabinet will ordinarily carry out all of the local authority's executive 

functions that are not the responsibility of any other part of the local 
authority, whether by law or under this Constitution, unless the Leader 
decides to discharge them personally or allocate them to an individual 
Cabinet Member or a Committee of the Cabinet. The Leader may do this 
at any time. The Leader may also delegate those functions to a joint 
committee, another local authority, or officers. 
 

1.4 Where the Cabinet is exercising these functions, it may delegate those 
functions to a Committee of the Cabinet or officers, but not to an 
individual member of the Cabinet.  
 

1.5 Where an individual Cabinet Member is exercising these functions, it 
may delegate those functions to officers. 
 

1.6 Where Executive functions have been delegated, that does not prevent 
the discharge of delegated functions by the person or body who 
delegated them; or the Leader or Cabinet from reviewing decisions made 
in the discharge of those functions in accordance with the provisions of 
Part 3 of this Constitution. All Executive functions not expressly reserved 
to the Leader, the Cabinet, a Committee of the Cabinet or an individual 
Cabinet Member are delegated to officers, subject to the restrictions on 
officer powers set out in Part 3 Section E of the Constitution. 

Appendix 6 
Page 98



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 2 of 8 

 
1.7 The Executive has to make decisions which are in line with the Council’s 

overall policies and budget. If it wishes to make a decision which is not 
in line with the budget or policy framework, this must be referred to the 
Full Council as a whole to decide. 
 

1.8 Decision making meetings of the Executive will generally be open for the 
public to attend except where confidential or exempt matters are being 
discussed. Decisions of the Executive will be taken in accordance with 
the Access to Information Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the Constitution.  
 

2. Matters reserved for the Executive 
 
2.1 The following functions shall be exercised only by the Executive and will 

be taken by the Cabinet, or a Committee or Sub-Committee appointed 
by it, unless the Leader chooses to exercise these functions personally 
or allocate them to an individual Cabinet Member or a Committee of the 
Cabinet: 
 
General: 
 
(a) All key decisions. These will be published in the Forward Plan in 

so far as they can be anticipated; 
 

(b) Changes to fees, charges or concession policies in respect of 
executive functions; 

 
(c) Decisions on permanent savings in the budget to achieve the 

Cabinet’s policies; 
 

(d) To be responsible for those local choice functions allocated to the 
Cabinet; 

 
(e) To oversee the delivery of Council services; 

 
(f) To agree the reduction or cessation of any of Council service; 

 
(g) With the agreement of the Leader, to enter into new, or confirm 

existing, joint arrangements with the Cabinets of other local 
authorities. 

 
Policy: 
 
(a) To formulate the Council’s overall policy objectives and draft the 

budget and policy framework for approval by the Council; 
 
(b) To determine the Council’s strategy and programme for 

implementing the budget and policy framework set by the Council; 
 

Page 99



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 3 of 8 

(c) To consider and promote initiatives to improve the quality, 
efficiency and effectiveness of Council services; 

 
(d) To determine the Council’s strategies and programmes in relation 

to: 
(i) the social, economic and environmental needs of the Borough;  
(ii) human rights and equalities in community leadership, service 

delivery and as an employer; 
(iii) service transformation and best value 
 

(e) To oversee, including strategy formulation, co-ordination and 
implementation of the councils functions under the relevant 
legislation in relation to: 
(i) Regeneration and social inclusion; 
(ii) Community engagement, including communication, 

consultation, capacity building and active citizenship. 
 

Local and Community Leadership: 
 
(a) To provide community leadership in the Borough; 
 
(b) To lead on community planning with input from others as 

appropriate; 
 

(c) To develop, and consult on as appropriate, the Council’s policy 
framework and other strategic documents; 

 
(d) To take in-year decisions on resources and priorities and to 

deliver and implement the budget and policy framework as 
agreed by the Council; 

 
(e) To be the focus for forming partnerships with public, private, 

voluntary and community organisations and to be responsible for 
effective joint work with partner agencies. 

 
Financial management and resources 
 
(a) To be responsible for the strategic management of Council 

resources, including land, property and staff, and to take 
decisions on such matters in the context of the Council’s budget 
and policy framework and the Financial Regulations at Part 4 of 
this Constitution , including but not limited to: 

(i) Budget management and control; 
(ii) Revenue virements involving a change of Council policy of 

£100,000 or above and all other revenue virements of 
£250,000 or above; 

(iii) Capital virements of £250,000 or above; 
(iv) The achievement of value for money 

 

Page 100



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 4 of 8 

(b) To have responsibility for the acquisition or disposal of Council 
interest in land and buildings with a capital value equalling or 
exceeding £500,000. 

 
Children’s Services 
 
(a) Local Management of Schools – significant variations to the 

Scheme and any cases of a withdrawal of delegated powers, with 
the exception of power to suspend the right to a delegated budget 
where a school is eligible for intervention which is delegated to the 
Director following consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member; 

 
(b) The adoption of a syllabus of religious education on the 

recommendation of the Standing Advisory Council on Religious 
Education (SACRE);   

 
(c) The determination of discretionary awards;  

 
(d) The establishment or discontinuance of schools; 
 
(e) Permanent closure, relocation or change of use of residential 

establishments and day establishments providing services for 
children. 

 
Adult Social Services 

 
(a) Decisions on the permanent closure, relocation or change of use 

of residential establishments and day establishments.  
 

Housing Services 
 

(a) Declaration of a clearance area in respect of slum clearance, of 
housing action areas and of general improvement areas pursuant 
to the provisions of the Housing Act 1985  

 
Regeneration and Property Services 

 
(a) The annual bid to Transport for London for financial allocations to 

fund the Local Implementation Plan; 
 
(b) Local Implementation Plan - the addition of a scheme to, or the 

deletion of a scheme from, the active preparation programme;  
 
(c) 'Major Greater London Road Network Schemes' - Council 

response to public draft line, side road and compulsory purchase 
orders; 

 
(d) Major Capital Transportation Proposals: 

Page 101



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 5 of 8 

(i) Choosing a preferred route or option following public 
consultation; 

(ii) Authorising the promotion of Compulsory Purchase and 
Side Road Orders; 

 
(e) The making of an order for the compulsory acquisition of land; 
 
(f) The acquisition of land in advance of requirements; 
 
(g) Approval of the Local Development Scheme before submission to 

the Secretary of State; 
 
(h)  Approval of all Local Development Documents (LDDs) 
 

 
Highways Services 

 
(a) Approval of traffic calming works where more than 10 objections 

have been received; 
 

(b) Approval of (i) all orders to designate all or part of a public footpath 
as a cycle track prior to statutory consultation and (ii) any order 
which has been subject to objection, prior to its be submission to 
the Secretary of State for confirmation; 

 
(c) Approval of any permanent traffic regulation order subject to valid 

objection. 
 
Contracts and Procurement  
 

(a) Power to suspend any contractor from the Lists in cases of serious 
breach of contract or unsatisfactory service delivery for contracts 
valued at £500,000 (five hundred and fifty thousand pounds) or 
more. 

 
 
3.  The Leader and Individual Cabinet Members  
 
3.1 Individual Cabinet Members have powers allocated by the Leader to 

exercise those functions of the Cabinet which fall within that Cabinet 
Member’s specific portfolio responsibilities.  

 
3.2  On the production of each monthly update to the Forward Plan the 

Leader shall indicate which decisions - 
 

(a)  may be taken by the Cabinet Meeting, or  
(b) may be taken by a Cabinet Committee, or 
(c) may be taken by the Leader personally, or 
(d)  may be taken by an individual Cabinet Member or Members 

Page 102



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 6 of 8 

 
 If there is any doubt as to which portfolio would cover any proposed 

decision by a Cabinet Member, the matter shall be referred to the Leader 
to determine the appropriate portfolio.  

 
3.3 At any time before a decision on the Forward Plan has been taken, the 

Leader may allocate that decision to a different body or person within 
paragraph 3.2 (a) to (e) above. 

 
3.4  The Cabinet meeting, when considering any matter referred to it, and 

unless the Leader directs otherwise, may delegate any aspect of the 
matter to a Cabinet Committee or to an officer for decision but not so as 
to conflict with any decision already taken by the Cabinet Meeting. At a 
Cabinet meeting the Leader may reserve any aspect of the matter for 
his/her own decision at the time or subsequently. 

 
3.5  An individual Cabinet Member may refer any decision, within that 

Member’s responsibilities, to a meeting of the Cabinet or to the Leader 
for determination.  

 
3.6  The Leader may take any executive decision in place of, or between 

meetings of, the Cabinet, including decisions that have become urgent, 
in accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules at Part 4 
of this Constitution and the procedures on urgent decisions in paragraph 
1.7 of The Protocol on Decision-Making. The Leader may take such a 
decision alone but may consult with any other Cabinet Member(s) having 
relevant portfolio responsibilities so far as is appropriate. The Leader 
may also allocate any executive decision whether urgent or not to the 
Cabinet Member having the relevant portfolio responsibilities, or to a 
Committee of the Cabinet. 

 
4.  Assistant Cabinet Members  
 
4.1  The Council may appoint Assistant Cabinet Members to provide an 

effective link between the Cabinet and other Councillors and to assist 
Cabinet Members generally and with specific roles within their portfolio. 

 
4.2  The Assistant Cabinet Members:-  

 
(a)  May not take Cabinet decisions  
(b)  May have specific areas of focus within the relevant portfolio area 
(c)  Will be able to substitute in certain circumstances for the Cabinet 

Members but not if a decision is to be made as part of the Cabinet 
arrangements  

(d)  Can attend and participate in the absence of the relevant Cabinet 
Member at meetings of the Cabinet with the permission of the 
Leader but cannot vote  

Page 103



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 7 of 8 

(e)  Cannot participate in a Scrutiny Panel or Review that is examining 
an area of policy within the relevant Cabinet Member portfolio 
responsibilities  

(f)  May put questions to Cabinet Members at Council Question time 
but not in respect of the portfolio to which they have responsibility 
as an Assistant Cabinet Member  

(g)  Assistant Cabinet Members may not take part in Cabinet 
decision-making in any way.  

 
5.  Deputy Leader of the Council  
 
5.1  The Leader shall appoint a Deputy Leader of the Council from among 

the Cabinet Members (other than the Leader) and the Deputy Leader 
may carry out the deputising functions below in addition to having the 
responsibilities of one of the Cabinet Member portfolios. 

 
5.2  The Deputy Leader may at the request of the Leader and in the Leader’s 

absence:  
(a)  deputise for the Leader by chairing meetings of the Cabinet and 

Leadership meetings  
(b)  act as spokesperson on all matters that are the responsibility of 

the Cabinet  
(c)  represent the Council with regard to Member level contacts or 

meetings with Central Government and any regional, national or 
international organisations. 

 
5.3 In the event that the Leader is unable to act or the office of Leader is 

vacant, the Deputy Leader may exercise all the functions of the Leader 
under this Constitution. 
 

SECTION 2 - COMMITTEES OF THE EXECUTIVE  
 
The Leader or the Cabinet may delegate any of its functions to a Committee of 
the Cabinet. Committees of the Cabinet shall report to the Cabinet. The Cabinet 
may establish decision-making Committees, which may only include Cabinet 
Members. The Cabinet may establish advisory Committees, the membership of 
which need not be limited to Cabinet Members. The Cabinet may change them, 
abolish them, or create further ones, at its own discretion. 

 
Committees established by the Cabinet shall be empowered to perform their 
functions with immediate effect unless the Leader or the Cabinet imposes any 
express restriction when they are established. Unless stated otherwise, all 
Decision-Making Committees will continue in operation until expressly 
abolished by the Leader or the Cabinet and all Advisory or Consultative 
Committees will continue in operation only until the first meeting of the Cabinet 
in the next municipal year following their establishment when they must be 
expressly renewed or they cease to exist. 
 

Page 104



PART THREE – RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS 
SECTION C – The Executive: The Leader, the Cabinet and Cabinet Bodies 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY CONSTITUTION 
Last updated July 2021 
 

Page 8 of 8 

All functions that have been delegated to a Committee established by the 
Cabinet can still be taken by the Cabinet as the parent body (i.e. the body that 
delegated the decision), or by the Leader either personally or in accordance 
with the Leader’s delegation of those functions to an individual Cabinet Member 
or an alternative Committee of the Cabinet. 

 
The establishment, abolition or cessation of Committees and the amendment 
of their terms of reference will be reported to full Council in due course for noting 
in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on  the 27th of May 2021
	7 To receive the report of the Chief Executive
	8 Announcement by the Leader - CSO 3.1 vii
	10 To make appointments to Outside Bodies
	11 To receive reports from the following bodies
	Annex 1
	Annex 1.1
	Annex 2
	Standards Report to Council - Appendices 1-6
	Standards Report to Council - Appendices 1-6
	Standards Report - Appendix 1 - Constitution Part 2 (Articles)
	Chief Executive
	Director of Adults and Health
	Director of Finance
	Director of Housing Regeneration, and Planning 
	Director for Environment and Neighbourhoods
	Director for Children’s Services

	Standards Report - Appendix 2 - Constitution Part 3 Section E Part 1
	Standards Report - Appendix 3 - Constitution Part 3 Section E Part 2
	Legal
	Legal
	 To take action regarding complaints received
	 To settle any Ombudsman / Complaint Cases:
	(i) cases of alleged maladministration where there has not been a finding of maladministration by the Ombudsman


	Standards Report - Appendix 4 - Constitution Part 3 Section E Part 3
	Standards Report - Appendix 5 - Constitution Part 4 Section K

	Appendix 6 (new)
	SECTION 1 – THE EXECUTIVE’S ROLE AND FUNCTIONS






